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1. Acron5rmr, Abbrcvietlonr ead GlorerSz of Tcrme

A: Acroa5rmr ead Abbrcvletloar

Arch.

CBK

CEO

CPA

DOB

ED

Eng.

FA

ICPAK

IPSAS

NT

OAG

ocoB
OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

Qs.

SAGAs

sc
US

WB

WIP

YOB

Architect

Central Bank of Kenya

Chief Executive Oflicer

Certitred Public Accountant

Date of Birth

Executive Director

Engineer

Financial Analyst

Institute of Certilied Public Accor:ntants of Kenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

National Treasury

OIIice of the Auditor General

Offrce of the Controller of Budget

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2OO7

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Quantity surveyor

Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

State Corporations

United States

World Bank

Work in progress

Year of Birth

lv



NaAlm.Annual Remrts and Staternents for the Year Ended. Juae 30- 2023
B: Gloruty of Tonar

Ftduclrry llu S.DGEt- Members of Management directly entmsted with the
responsibility of financial resources of the organisation

Coupentlvc Ycrr- Means the prior period.



nde 
I ^"*"'" Annual Reoorts and Financial Slalements for the Year E June 30. 2023

2

(al

(bI

Key Entlty Informatlon eod Management

Background lnformatloa
The National Construction Authority was established through the National
Construction Authority (NCA) Act No. 41 of 2011. The object for which the
Authority is established is to oversee the construction industryr and
coordinate its development.

Prlnclpal Actlvltles
The Authority is Mandated to: -

. Promote and stimulate the development, improvement and expansion

of the construction industry;
o Advise and make recommendations to the Cabinet Secretary on matters

affecting or connected with the construction industry;
o Undertake or commission research into any matter relating to the

construction industry;
o Prescribe the qualification or other attributes required for registration;
o Assist in the exportation of construction serrices connected to the

constmction industry;
o Provide consultancy and advisory services with respect to the

construction industry;

. Encourage the standardization and improvement of constmction
techniques and materials;

. Promote and ensure quality assurance in the construction industry;
o Enforce the prescribed Building Code in the construction industry.
o Initiate aIId maintain a construction industry information system;
. Provide, promote, review and co-ordinate training progr.rms organized

by public and private accredited training centers for skilled
construction workers and construction site supervisors;

o Accredit and register contractors and regulate their professional

undertakings;
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a Accredit and certifu skilled constnrction workers and construction site

supervisors;

Develop and publish a code of conduct for the construction industry,

and

Do all other things that may be necessary for the better carrying out of

its functions under the Act.

Vlrlon
"An innovative, well-coordinated and prosperous construction industr/

Mlr:loa
'To regulate, facilitate and build capacity in the construction industry
through strategic interventions and partnerships for sustainable socio-

economic development"

Corc vduer
As a public sector institution, the Authority is dedicated to excellence and

provision of high-quality professional service to its customers. The

Authority's core values are:

o Professionalism

. Ethics artd Integrity

o Elliciency

o Innovation

o Environmental stewardship

o Team spirit

a

vll
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lcf Kcy Uaragemcat

The Authority's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

Table 1: Key Management

I Board of Directors

2 Executive Director
Eng. Maurice Akech,

MBS

3 General Manager, Corporate Services CPA. James Kilonzi

4
General Manager, Registration and

Compliance Qs. Susan Rutto

5

Ag. General Manager, Constmction

Research, Business Development and

Capacity Building
Arch. Juliet Kabere

6 Manager, Finance and Accounts CPA. Christine Kirimi
7 Manager, Supply Chain Dr. Vincensia Apopa, Phd

8 Manager, Human Resource CHRP. Paul Kariuki,

9 Manager, Administration Mr. Daniel Kemei,

10. Manager, Legal/ Corporation Secretary Mr. Samson Lukoba

11.
Manager, Planning, Quality Assurance and

Risk Management
Mr. Paul Gesora

72. Manager, Internal Audit CPA. Anthony Ochieng

13. Manager, Registration Eng. Ra5rmond Karani

14. Manager, Corporate Communications Ms. Wangui Kabala

15. Manager, Compliance Arch. Stephen Mwilu

16. Manager, ICT Ms. Annette Okello

t7
Ag. Manager, Construction Research and

Business Development
Eng. Stephen Nyakondo

vlll
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ldf Ftduclary Manegcmcut

The key management personnel who held oflice during the linancial year

ended 30e June 2023 and who had direct frduciar5r responsibility were:

Table 2: Fiduciary Manogem.ent

lcl Ftductary Ovenlght Arraagc mcntr
The Authority has identified risk malagement as a priority area. This is

premised on the effect the risks have on the achievement of the strategic

objectives of the Authority and the industry at large. The Board Audit

Committee is charged rvith the mandate to oversee the Authority's risk
procedures, review ald approval of key risk policies, risk authorities and

risk tolerances, governance and internal controls.

Finance, Administration ald Development Committee of the Board is
charged with the responsibility of providing oversight over the financia.l

operations of the Authority. The Committee is responsible for the following

functional areas of the Authority Finance & Accounts; Supply Chain;

Planning, Quality Assurance & Risk Management; l,egal; ICT; Corporate

Communications and Administration. The Committee ensures that the

policies, procedures and internal controls for the departments are elfective.

Article 95 (4) (c) states that The National Assembly exercises oversight over

national revenue and its expenditure. The Nationai Assembly exercises this

I Executive Director Eng. Maurice Akech, MBS

o General Manager, Corporate Services CPA. James Kilonzi

3
General Manager, Registration and

Compliance
Qs. Susan Rutto

4
Ag. General Manager, Construction Research,

Business Development and Capacit5z Building
Arch. Juliet Kabere

lx
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oversight over the Authority through the Departmental Housing, Urban
Planning and Public Works committee. In addition, the other committees of
the Nationa-l Assembly under which the oversight is exercised includes the
Public Accounts Committee and the Public Investments Committee.

In addition to the implementation of the ERM framework, to address the
inherent operational risks, the Authority has formulated comprehensive
policies and procedures which are constantly under review to address any
emerging risks. The board has since approved the overarching and
operational risk malagement policies for implementation by management.

Other measures instituted to mitigate against operational risks includes:
effective segregation of duties; alnual risk reviews; stalf education and
sensitization; authorization levels; and entrenching risks management
culture.

Entit5r Headquarters

9th Floor, KCB Towers, Kenya Road,

P.O Box 21046-0010O,

NAIROAI.

Authority Coatacts

Tel: +254 7O9 126 tO2/172/173.
Email : inf@nca.go. ke

Website : www.nca.go.ke

Authorlty Bankerg

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd,

Milimani Branch,

NSSF Building, Bishops Road,

P.O. Box 69695 - 00400

NAIROBI.

NCBA, Upper Hill Branch,

CBA Building, Mara and Ragati Roads,

P.O Box 30437-001O0

NAIROBI.

x
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Co-operative bank of Ltd

Upper Hill Branch,

KUSSCO Centre

P.O Box 30415-00100

NAIROBI.

Consolidated Bank of Kenya Ltd

Koinange Street Branch,

Consolidated Bank House,

P.O Box 51133 - 00200

ITAIROBI.

(tl IndcpeadeatAudltor
Auditor-General

OIIice of the Auditor General

Anniversar5r Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00r00

Nairobi, Kenya

0l Haclpal Lcgd Advlrcr
The Attorney General

State Law Oflice ald Department of Justice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

xl
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3. The Board of Dlrectors

I

Qr. Davld Galtho, MBS

Chairperson of ttre Board,

Representing the Institute of

Quartity Surveyors of Kenya

(IQSK)

Y.O.B 1969

Appointed on 2O.OI.2O2O

Term lapsed 19.1.2023

Qs. David Gaitho has over 28 years'

experience in the construction industry,

having worked in both the public and

private sectors. He is a registered

Quantity Surveyor with the Board of
Registration of Architects and Quantity
Surveyors (BORAQS), a Fellow of the

Institute of Quantity Surveyors (IQSK), a

Fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and a Fellow

of the Institution of Construction Project

Managers (ICPMK). Qs. Gaitho has

served professional associations with
distinction as Chairman of IQSK and

currently as the President of the Africa

Association of Quantity Surveyors

(AAQS). Qs. Gaitho holds a Masters of
Science (Msc) in Project Management

from the University of Liverpool and a
Bachelor's Degree in Building
Economics from the Universidz of
Nairobi.

xll
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Mercy Oklro, Adv

Vice Chairperson of the

Board,

Representing the Law Society

of Kenya

Y.O.B 1988

Appointed on 06. 10.202 1

Mercy Okiro is an independent

arbitrator and Advocate of the High

Court of Kenya. She has vast experience

in both domestic and international

arbitration. Her expertise includes

acting as both counsel and arbitrator in

disputes across a variety of industries

including construction, infrastructure,

property, commercial and shareholder

disputes.

She is an Accredited Tutor, Assessor and

Accredited Mediator of the Chartered

Institute of Arbitrators (London) and the

Nairobi Centre for International

Arbitration (NCIA) as well as an Adjunct

Faculty Member at the Kenya School of

Law and Strathmore Universig where

she teaches arbitration and mediation.

Mercy holds a Master of Arts degree in

International Studies from the

University of Nairobi and a Master of

Laws degree in International

Commercial and Investment Arbitration

with Queen Mary University of London.

She holds professional certifications in

corporate governance, trade law and

policy, construction adjudication, ESG

governance, legal audits, arbitration,

mediation and sports disputes

resolution. She is currently getting her

xllt



Nda 
I Annual R nancial State Year Ended Jun

certifications in FIDIC construction and

Construction Adjudication. Mercy is on

the panel of Neutrals of various

institutions locally and regiona-lly. She is

also listed on the panel of lawyers of the

Sports Disputes Tribunal in Kenya and

the Court of Arbitration for Sports in
Lausanne, Switzerland. She is a

multiple award-winning arbitrator

3

Wawenr Gathecha

Board Member, representing

the Architectural Association

of Kenya

Y.O.B 1972

Appointed on 06. 10.2021

Mr. Gathecha is a registered Architect

and the Managing Partner at Waweru &
Associates Architects, arr architectural

firm based in Nairobi. He has

underta-ken projects in the United

Kingdom, Kenya, Rwanda and Souttr

Sudan. He graduated with a degree in
architecture from the Universit5r of
Nottingham, United Kingdom, in 1998.

He is also a Fellow of the Architectura-l

Association of Kenya (AAK) arld a

Corporate Member of the Royal Institute

of British Architects (RIBA). He also

serves as a Board Member on the Board

of Registration of Architects and

Quantity Surveyors of Kenya (BORAQS).

Mr. Gathecha is a past president of the

Architectura.l Association of Kenya, and

a past counci.l member of the East Africa

Institute of Architects, Africa Union of
Architects, ald the International Union

xlv
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of Architects. He has served the

Commonwealth Association of

Architects as a validation panel member,

and in this capacity was involved in the

validation of Architectural education

course outcomes at schools of

architecture across several African

countries. He has also served a Sector

Board Chairperson at the Kenya Private

Sector Alliance (KEPSA).

4

Prof. Goddck Bulltle
Board Member, representing

Special Interest Groups

v.o.B 1977

Appointed on 05.O5.2O2O

Term lapsed O4.O5.2O23

Prof. Bulitia is the Deputy Vice -
Chancellor, Academics and Students

Alfairs at Maasai Mara University.

Before his current post, he served as the

Chief Executive Officer of Kaimosi

Friends University, now a constituent

college of Masinde Muliro University of

Science and Technolory. He has a PhD

in Business Administration from

Maseno University, as well as an MBA

and Bachelors (Education), both from

the University of Nairobi. As a career

educator, Prof. Bulitia pioneered the e-

learning modules for Maseno University

and has helped develop curriculums for

various universities both locally ard
abroad. He has been published in over

nineteen (19) internationally peer

reviewed scientific papers and journals,

in addition to publishing a university

xv
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level book in Human Resource

Management. Prof. Bulitia also serves on

the Board of The Centre for Corporate

Governance Alumni Network. Prof.

Bulitia is currently serving in the Board

for the second term having been

appointed first on 12.O5.2O77.

5

Mr. Peter Musaago

Board Member, representing

Roads and Civil Engineering

Contractors Association

(RACECA)

Y.O.B 1966

Appointed on O6. 1O.2021

Mr. Peter Musango is registered as a
graduate engineer with the Engineers

Board of Kenya (EBK). He graduated

with a BSc Civil Engineering (Hon) from

the Universit5r of Nairobi in 1990 and
gained training from the Ministry of
Works and Water as well as Private

Consulting Engineers in Kenya before

his engagement in the private sector

from 1994. He has been involved in
various water, sanitation, building,

roads and civil engineering

infrastructure projects in Kenya,

Uganda and South Sudan. Mr. Peter

Musango has continuously practiced

over the last 31 years. He currenfly
serves as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of a construction

compErny and also serves as a Director

in various private compalies and pubUc

schools in Kenya. He is a.lso the

Secretary of the Roads and Civil

J

It

xvl
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Engineering Contractors Association

(RACECA).

Eng. Stephen Kogi is a Civil Engineer

registered with the Engineers Board of

Kenya. He has been involved in key

infrastructural projects in the industry

over the last twenty years. He also

possesses a wide range of corporate

governance experience in his

appointment to the Board of the

Authority representing the State

Department of Infrastructure.

6

Eng. Stcphca Kogl, OGW

Board Member, representing

the Principal Secretary, State

Department for Infrastructure.

Y.O.B 1964

Appointed on 0 1.09.2015

7

Mr. Kcnacdy Saglal

Board Member, representing

the Kenya Federation of

Master Builders (KFMB)

Y.O.B 1969

Appointed on 06. 1O.202 I

Mr. Kennedy Sagini is a Managing

Director at SAK- Way Holdings Limited.

He has been involved in various

construction projects and served as a

Site Engineer at Masosa Construction

Compaly Limited and also as a Project

Manager at Sakem Constnrction. His

experience in the construction industry

spans over 27 yexs.

xvll
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8

Mr. Kalpeah lllranl
Board Member, representing

the Kenya Association of

Building & Civil Engineering

Contractors (KABCEC)

Y.O.B 1977

Appointed on 06. 10.2021

Mr. Kalpesh Hirani is a Director of a

construction company based in Nairobi

Count5r engaged mainly in the

construction of commercial and

residential buildings. Mr. Hirani is well

versed with mandatory, legislative and

contractual requirements of

constn-rction projects. He has a strong

background in Project Management arrd

Project Coordination with various

consultants and relevant bodies in the

construction industry

9

F.A. Paul Kiagu

Board Member, representing

the Cabinet Secretary

Nationa-l Treasury and

Plarlning

Y.O.B r969

Appointed on 23.O4.2O2O

F.A. Paul Kiagu is a graduate from

Kenyatta UniversitSr with B.A Economics

and Masters in Applied Economics

(Finance). He is also a Certified

Investment and Financial Analyst with
the Institute of Certified Investment arrd

Financial Analysts (ICIFA). He is a

member of Economists Society of Kenya

(ESK) and the Institute of Certilied

Investment and Financia.l Anatysts

(ICIFA). He works at the National
Treasury as an Economist/ Financial

Analyst dealing with the analysis of
budgets, financial reports and
Government of Kenya (GOK) on-lend
loans to State Corporations. He is a1so

involved in the implementation of Public

xvlll
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Finance Ma-nagement Reforms (PFMR).

He represents the National Treasury in

the hrblic Investment Committee (PIC)

in Parliament on policy matters relating

to Government Investments ald hrblic

Enterprises. He has a wide range of

experience in various Boards of State

Corporations having represented the

Cabinet Secretary from 2012.

Q.s Bucha holds a PhD in Leadership

and Governance, Master's Degree in

Building Management and a Bachelor's

degree in Building Economics, both from

ttre University of Nairobi. Served as part

time lecturer in Architectura-l

Depa-rtment, University of Nairobi. He is

a registered Quantity Survey and has

worked with the Government for over 3O

years in various positions including,

Deputy Director Housing, Programme

Coordinator, Kenya Slum Upgrading

Programme (KENSUP), Project Manager,

Civil Servants Housing Programme and

Director of Estates Management in

charge of all government houses. He

served as Managing Director, National

Housing Corporation and chaired a team

on housing bond issue and capital

restructuring of the Corporation.

Currently, he serves as the Secretary10.

Dr. Qe. Patrick M. Bucha,

MBS

Board Member, representing

the Principal Secretar5r, State

Department for Housing &
Urban Development.

Y.O.B 1964

Appointed on 02.06.2020

Term lapsed on 12.04.2023

xlx



Ndn 
I 3and Financial s r the Year Ended

Housing in the State Department of
Housing and Urban Development in
charge of implementing the Housing

Agenda under the Big Four Agenda,

formuiation of housing policies and laws

as well as coordinating implementation

of National Police and Kenya Prisons

Services housing, Slum Upgrading and

Civil Servants Housing. His Excellency

the President honored him with Moran

of the Order of the Burning Spear (MBS)

on 72th December, 20 I 1 for his

contribution in the housing sector.

11.

Qr, Sald Athae'r, EBS

Board Member, representing

the Principal Secretary, State

Department for Housing &
Urban Development.

Y.O.B 1965

Appointed on 12.04.2023

Qs. Said Athman is an experiences

professional and registered Quantity
Surveyor with the Board of Registration

of Architects and Qualtity Surveyors

(BORAQS). He joined the Ministry in
2008 where he worked under the
Ministry of Nationa.l Heritage and
Culture, the Ministry of Mining and the

Ministry of Tourism as the Culture
Secretar5r before joining the Ministry of
Housing as the Housing secretar5r. He

has been awarded the EBS, Golden

Award of the Presidential Award scheme

and Lion Scout of the Kenyan Scout by
His Excellency the President. Qs. Said

Athman holds a Master of Science in
Urban ald Regional Planning and

xx
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Bachelor of Arts in Building Economics

both from University of Nairobi.

72.

Arch. Jackgon Mutua

Board Member, representing

State Department for Public

Works

Y.O.B 1963

Appointed on 2L.LO.2O2O

Term lapsed on 25.08. 2022.

Arch. Jackson Mutua is a seasoned

professional and registered architect

with the Board of Registration of

Architects and Quantity Surveyors

(BORAQS). He started his career in the

private sector with Plano-consult

(Architects & Planners) for 2 years before

joining Ministry of Public Works in the

year 1994 and worked in various

capacities and regions rising to the level

of Regional Works Offrcer (Upper

Eastern) in 2010. From 2O 12 to 2Ol7 , he

worked as an Assistant Director in State

Depa-rtment of Housing and

Development overseeing development of

socia-l & physical infrastructure projects

under the Kenya Slum Upgrading

Program. He returned to the State

Depa-rtment of Public Works in 2017 and

put in charge of all projects under

Ministry of Housing and oversaw the

delivery of 1370 housing units in Park

Road Nairobi under the Alfordable

Housing Program. Arch. Jackson Mutua

holds a Master of Science in

Construction Project Management from

Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture

xxl
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and Technolory ald Bachelor of
Architecture from Universit5r of Nairobi.

13.

Eng. Dr. Samuel Charagu,

HSC

Board Member, representing

State Department for Public

Works

Y.O.B 1964

Appointed on 25.08.2022

Eng. Dr. Samuel Charagr: is a Civil

Engineer registered under the Engineers

Board of Kenya (EBK). He was also a

Former Honorar5r Secretary Council

member of institution of Engineers

(IEK). Eng. Charagu is currently the

Secretar5r National Building
inspectorate, State Department for

Public Works under the Ministry of
Lands of Housing, Urban Development

and Public Works.

14.

Eng. Maurlce AAech, MBfl

Executive Director/Secretary

to the Board.

Eng. Akech was appointed on 27tt

September 2Ol9 as the second

Executive Director and Registrar of
Contractors. He previously served the

Authority in the capacity of the General

Manager for Research, Training and

Capacity Building where his main role

was to spearhead and provide leadership

in the construction Industry on research

and training activities as well as

consultancy and advisory services that
promote its development, coordination

and growth. He is a professional

xxll
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engineer registered as a civil engineer by

Engineer's Board of Kenya and a

corporate member of the Institution of

Engineers of Kenya. He holds a master's

degree in Construction Engineering and

Management (CEM) and Bachelors of

Science degree in Civil Engineering (CE)

both from Jomo Kenyatta University of

Agriculture and Technologr, Kenya.

Eng. Maurice has experience spanning

over 20 years in design, construction

supervision and management as well as

leadership in the construction industry.

He has worked on mega civil

engineering, infrastructure and

telecommunications projects in various

capacities with international and loca.l

companies in Kenya. Some of the

companies he has worked for prior to
joining NCA include Safaricom Ltd, Gibb

Africa and Howard Humphreys

Consulting Engineers.

15.

Samron Lukoba, Adv

Mr. Lukoba is an Advocate of the High

Court of Kenya and a Certified

Secretary. He has over fifteen years'

experience in both strategic and

operational positions in a multinationa-l

organization and the public sector. He

has a strong legal background with

emphasis on Human Resource and

xxlu
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Corporation Secretar5r & Head

of Legal

Industrial Relations Management v/ith a
focus on Compliance and Risk

management. Prior to joining NCA, Mr.
Lukoba was the l,egal and Ethical
Trading Manager at Oserian

Development Company Ltd. He has also

worked with various legal frrms, where

he worked extensively in litigation. Mr.

Lukoba holds a Bachelor of Laws (LLB)

from the Universit5z of Mumbai (India), a

Bachelor of Arts from Pa-njab University
(India) and a Diploma in l,aw from the

Kenya School of Law. He is a member of
the Law Societ5r of Kenya and Institute of
Certified Public Secretaries of Kenya and

currently pursuing Master of Laws in oil
and gas in Strathmore Universigr.

xxlv
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4. Key Maaagemeat Team

I

Eng. Maurlce Akcch , MBS
. Master of Science Construction

Engineering and Management
o Bachelors of Science degree in Civil

Engineering

Executive

Director/ Secreta-ry to the

board

2

Master of Business
(Strategic Management)
Master of Science in

Public Accountant of Kenya

CPA Jemce Klloazl

Administrationa

of Commerce

hrblic Policy

(Accounting
Analysis
Bachelor
Option)
Certilied
(CPAK)

GM Corporate Services

xxv
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3

Qr. Suaaa Rutto I. Master Business Administration
o Bachelor of Arts (Building Economics

t.

and Management)

General Manager,

Registration and

Complialce

4
o Master's degree in Urban Malagement
o Bachelor of Architecture

Arch. Jullet Kabcre

Ag. General Manager,

Construction Research,

Business Development

and Capacity Building

5

Eng. Raymond Ikrart
. Master in Business Administration
o Bachelor of Science in Civil

En ee

Manager, Registration
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6

Arch, Stcphen Mvllu
o Master's degree in Construction

Management
. Bachelor of Architecture

Manager, Compliance

7

CPA Chrlrtlnc Klrlml
. Master of Business Administration
. Bachelor of Commerce
o Certified hrblic Accountant of Kenya

(cPAK)
. Certified Investment and Financial

Analyst (CIFAI

Ma:rager, Finance ald
Accounts

8

Daalcl Kcmcl
o MSc. Human Resource Management
. Post Graduate Diploma in Corporate

Governance
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9

Paul Gesora
o Master of Economics
. Bachelor of Arts Economics

Manager, Pla-nning,
Quality Assurance and
Risk

10.

CHRP Paul Karluki
. Master of Business Administration

(Strategic Management)
. Executive Masters in R:blic Policy &

Administration
o Higher National Diploma in Human

Resource Management
o Bachelor of Education

Manager, Human
Resource

11.

Sameon Lukoba
. Bachelor of Laws
o Bachelor of Arts
. Diploma in Law

Corporation Secretar5r
and Head of Legal
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Manager, Supply Chain

12.

Dr. Vlncelsla Apopa
. Doctor of Philosophy in Supply Chain

Management
o Masters in Procurement and Logistics
. Bachelor of Science degree in Supplies

and Purchasing Management

13.

Mrs. Wangul Kabala
. Master of Business Administration
o Bachelor of Arts, Communication
. Diploma in Business Administration

Manager, Corporate
Communications

Manager, Interna1 Audit

t4.

CPA Anthony Ochieng
. Master of Business Administration
. Bachelor of Commerce
e Certified Public Accountant of

(CPAK)
Kenya
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15.

Annctte lfarlatrl Q!6lls
Master of Science in Information
Technolory Management
Post Graduate Certifrcate in Global Social
and Sustainable Enterprise
Bachelor of Science in Com

a

a puting

Manager, ICT

16.

Eng. gtcphcn NyaLondo
o Bachelor of Science

Engineering
Mechanical

Ag.
Construction
and
Development

Manager,
Research
Business
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5. Chalrman'c Statement

The Authority commenced the 2022 / 2023 financia-l year with celebratory

activities to mark its ten-year anniversar5r, the zenith of which was the

Construction Excellence Awards (CEAs) Gala dinner held on 27th January 2O23.

The Awards are an initiative of the Authority to acknowledge and recog:nize

outstalding contributions of industry practitioners transforming the

construction industry through exceptional programs, innovative seruices and

effective administration. The Awards saw contractors and construction workers

across different categories feted for exemplar5z workmanship and professionalism

following a four-phased vetting process. Rrblic Works Principal Secretary Mr.

Joel Arumonyang graced the occasion as the Chief Guest.

Capacity building and promoting business within the constnrction industry is a

key Authority maldate. Through collaboration with the U.S Embassy in Kenya,

this was pgalizsd this year with NCA facilitating the participation of Kenyan

Contractors in two major construction events namely, World of Concrete and

CONEXPO on diverse dates in Las Vegas, USA. These conventions present the

contractors with unique opportunities to gain knowledge on enhancement of

productivity, automation, cost and quality of raw materials, as well as emerging

technologies and opportunities for business. Both delegations included members

of the Parliamentary Committee on Housing, Urban Planning and Public Works,

NCA Directors and Management. Additionally, contractors through the

Authority's facilitation were able to participate in the American Chamber of

Commerce's Annual Business Summit in Nairobi, which presented them with

the chance to network and establish partnerships with American entities.

Development and Planning Department with a view of establishing feasible areas

of collaboration in compliance and enforcement.

From a policy standpoint, the Authority engaged the Senate Committee on

Delegated Legislation regarding the National Buiiding Regulations, commonly

xxxl
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referred to as the Building Code. Plans are in place to engage the equivalent
Qetnrnittse of the National Assembly and the Attorney General,s office towards
passing of the regulations in Parliament. Once passed, the Authorit5r anticipates
a holistic and efficient regulatory framework for industr5r.

Xcrcy OHlo, Adv

VICE CIIAInPERSOIf OT TEE BOARD
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6. Report of the Chlef Executlve Offlcer

The 2022 /2023 financial year was especially signilicant to the Authority,

marking a decade since we officially commenced our operations.

Establishment of ollicial registers for contractors, construction workers and

projects is one of the biggest achievements for the Authority. As at the end of the

financia-1 year, the database has 61,7O4 registered contractors. This finalcial
year, 91481 construction workers and 2,468 construction site supervisors were

accredited. 3,987 projects were registered this financial year, 99o/o of the set

target.

Capacity building remains at the forefront of the Authority's mandate, towards

growth and expansion of the construction industry. This inciudes the Continous

Professiona.l Development (CPD) programme for contractors, the Continuous

Technical Development (CTD) programme for skilled construction workers and

site supervisors, on-site training for skilled construction workers and exit talks

as part of the mentorship programme in various institutions of higher learning,

and especially Technical and Vocationa.l Education and Training (TVET)

institutions. As at the end of the financial year, the Authority has trained 9,443

contractors, 17,339 construction site supervisors and 4,594 construction

workers.

A significant addition to the Authority calendar is the Annual Contractors'

Conference, which took place on Jwne 29,2023. The conference, which is the

continuous professional development (CPD) activity of the year, was

conceptualised as a platform to display emerging trends as well as to ventilate

and address industry challenges. This year's conference attracted contractors

from all categories and classes ofworks and wiII henceforth be al annual staple.

Another stand out event was the Research Dissemination Programme, a three-

day exercise that saw the Authorit5r discuss its latest research papers and

publicize the same to all stakeholders.

The Authority continues to seek mutually benefrcial partnerships and

continuously engaged staleholders at national, regional and county level. This

year saw the launch of the constituency-based accreditation drives, having
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successfully executed the same in Manyatta ald Kesses constituencies. The

exercise is set to continue into the next finaacial year.

The Authority is currently within the newly shifted renewal period, which ends

on July 3lst 2023. All registered contractors are expected to renew their annual
practicing licenses in order to remain in good standing. In the spirit of capacity
building, the Authority has waived renewal penalties for Medium, Small and
Micro Enterprises (MSMEs).

The Authority also heightened its surveillarrce and compliance efforts in bid to
curb and bring to end incidences of structura-l failure, with joint enforcement

exercises in Nairobi and Kiambu counties, which are especially allected by the

collapse of buildings. Thus far, 27,086 construction sites have been inspected

with 19,548 suspended for noncompliance.

The new financia.l year brings with it an opportunity to enrich the mutually
benefrcia-l partnerships with our stakeholders across the industry, as we align to
the Government's Bottom Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA).

Eng. Ma ch, MBS

DIRECTOR/ RTI}ISTRAR OF COIITRACTORS
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7. Statement of Performance agalntt Predetermlncd ObJectlver for FY

2022123

The National Construction Authority has five strategic piliars and objectives

within its Strategic PIan for the FY 2O2O /2021- 2024/2025. These strategic

pillars are as follows:

i. Innovation and operational excellence in the Authority;

ii. Tralsformed local construction industry through empowerment of local

contractors, skilled construction workers and construction site

super';"isors;

iii. Safety in all construction works including but not limited to buildings,

dams, roads, electrical, mechanicaJ, bridges etc;

iv. Innovative research ald business development;

v. Capacity in the local construction industry developed and improved.

National Construction Authority develops its annua-l work plans based on the

above pillars. The workplans informs the annual performance contract signed

between the Board ald the parent ministry. The performance contract is

cascaded down to stall of the Authority with the performance appraisals

conducted bi-annually. Assessment of the Board's performance against its
annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The National Construction

Authority achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2022/2023 period for

its strategic pillars, as indicated in the tabie below:

Table 3: Achleuement for the FY 2022-2023

KEY RISI'LT
AREA

OB'ECT
IVES

ACTTVITIES KEY
PERFORMAN
CE
II{DICATORS

it 2022-2023
ACHIEVEMEITT
s

Transformed
the loca-l
construction

Effective
and
ellicient

Register
contractors

Register
8,600
contractors

NCA registered
tr,727
contractors
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Skilled
constn-rction
workers
accredited

30,000 No of
skilled
construction
workers
accredited

28,512 No of
skilled
construction
workers
accredited

industry
through the
empowerment
of loca.l
contractors,
skilled
construction
workers and
construction
site supervisors

registrati
on and
accredita
tion
services

Construction
site
supervisors
accredited

1,500 No of
construction
site
supervisors
accredited

1,410 No of
construction site
supervisors
accredited

Project
registrations Register

4,000
construction
sites

3,9a7
construction
sites registered

Safety in all
construction
works,
including but
not limited to
buildings,
dams, roads,
electrical,
mechanical,
bridges etc

Promote
quality
assuranc
e in the
construc
tion
industry Carry out

construction
site
inspections

Carry out
30,oo0
construction
site
inspections

27,O86 site
inspections
carried out

Innovative
research and
business
development

Underta
ke and
commiss
ion
research
into any
matter
relating
to the
construc
tion
industry
Provide
consulta
ncy and
advisory
services
related

Carry out and
disseminate
research
Iindings

No. of reaches
disseminated

a) The 3rd
Edition of the
Annual
Construction
Research &
Innovation
Dissemination
Fonrm (CRIDF)
was successfully
held.

b) Publication of
two Research
papers on
COVID impact
to the
Construction
Industry.
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to the
construc
tion
industry

Consult for
and advise
stakeholders
on matters
related to
construction
industry

No. of
consultancies
and advisory
briefs

Carried 9
Number of
consultancies
and advisory
briefs

Capacity in the
locaI
construction
industr5r
developed and
improved

Build
and
improve
capacity
of
contract
ors,
skilled
constnrc
tion
workers
&
constrlc
tion site
supervis
ors

Training
programs for
construction
workers

40 No. of
progr€rms

43 programs
conducted and
trained 21,933
workers

Training
programs for
contractors

12 No. of
programs

12 programs
conducted and
trained 9,443
contractors

Innovation ald
operational
excellence in
the Authority

Establis
hment of
center
for
constn-rc
tion
industry
develop
ment

Install and
Commission a
Building
Information
Modelling
(BIM) solution
for the design
and
Construction
of CCID

Install and
Commission a
BIM solution
for the design
and
Constmction
of CCID

BIM installed
and
commissioned
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8. Corporatc Goveraaace Stetement
Corporate governance is the manner in which the power over of an orgalization
is exercised in the stewardship of its total portfolio of assets and resources with
the primary objective of increasing and sustaining shareholders value while

satis$,ing the needs of the other stakeholders in the context of the vision and

mission of the organization. The Authority is committed to the ideals espoused

on this statement and as a result all the Members of the Board aIId the top

management have been trained and certified on corporate governzrnce.

In line with the provisions under the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State

Corporations, the Board of Nationa.l Construction Authority has adopted high

standards and applies strict rules of conduct, based on the best corporate

practices. As part of this commitment, the Board adheres to good corporate

governance by embracing the following principles among others; observance of
high standards of ethica-l and moral behaviour, acting in the best interests of the

organization, remunerates and promote fairly ald responsibly, recognizes the

legitimate interests of a-ll stakeholders and ensures that the organization acts

as a good corporate citizen.

Board Composltlon
Section 7 of the National construction Authority Act No 41 of 2Ol1 prescribes

the manner in which the Board of the Authority shall be constituted. The aIlairs

of the Authority are managed by members from various nominating bodies and
state organs as stipulated under Section 7(1) of the National Construction

Authority Act No. 4l of 2O 1 1.

The Board membership is as tabulated in table 4;
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Toblc 4: Board Composition

1 Qs. David

Mwangi

Gaitho

Chairperson Institute of Quantity
Surveyors of Kenya (IQSK)

Term

l gth

2023

ended on

Januar5r

Chair position

vacant -

Vice Chairperson

senring -Ms.

Mercy Okiro,

Advocate

2 Mercy Okiro,

Adv.

Vice-

Chairperson

Law Society of Kenya (LSK)

3 Arch.

Jackson

Mutua

Board Member State Department for Public
Works, Ministry of La:rds,
Public Works, Housing &
Urbaa Housing Development

Term ended on
25m August 2O22

4 Qs. Patrick

Bucha, MBS

Board Member State Department for
Housing & Urban
Development, Ministry of
Lands, Public Works,
Housing & Urban
Development

Term ended on
12h April 2023

5 Eng. Stephen

Kog

Board Member State Department of Roads,
Ministry of Roads and
Ttansport

6 F.A. Paul

Kiagu

Board Member National Treasury

Economic Planning

&

7 Mr. Waweru

Gathecha

Board Member Architectural Association of

Kenya (AAK)

8 Mr. Kalpesh

Hirani

Board Member Kenya Association of Building
and Civil Engineering
Contractors fiABCECI
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The Board is keen on reviewing the overall framework of the internal controls

and the assessment of management process ald the adoption of the appropriate
policies, regulations and codes of ethics. It is also responsible for ensuring that
the Authority complies with the law and highest standards of the corporate and

business ethics.

The Chairperson of the Board is an independent member. The powers of the
Chairperson and those of the Executive Director are clearly stipulated ald there

is no conflict of interest of roles and responsibilities. The Executive Director is in
charge of the day-to-day operations of the Authority while the Board provides

the strategic and policy direction of the Authority.

9 Mr. Peter

Musalgo

Board Member Roads and Civil Engineering
Contractor's Association
(RACECA)

10 Mr. Kennedy

Sagini

Board Member Kenya Federation of Master
Builders (KFMB)

11 Prof. Godrick

Bulitia

Board Member Special Interest Group Term ended on
3'd May 2023

t2 Eng.

Samuel

Charagu,

HSC

Dr Board Member State Department for Public
Works, Ministry of I.ands,
Rrblic Works,
Housing & Urban
Development

Appointed on
256 August 2022

13 Qs. Said

Athman, EBS

Board Member State Department for
Housing & Urban
Development, Ministry of
Lands, Public Works,
Housing & Urban
Development

Appointed on
126 April 2023

t4 Eng. Maurice

Akech, MBS

Executive

Director

Ex-Oflicio Member
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Board and Commlttee Mectlng.
The aJfairs of the Board are conducted in line with the Section 9 of the National
Constnrction Authority Act No. 47 of 2O7l as read together with the Second

schedule thereunder. The Authority is also guided by the provisions of the state
Corporations Act No. 1l of 1986, Mwongozo Code of Governance for State
Corporations, Board & Committee Charters, Circulars and other guiding
government regulations that may be issued from time to time.

The Board meets at most six times in every financial year but the Authority,s
business may warrant the convening of special meetings from time to time. To

facilitate effective planning, attendance and participation in Board meetings, a
Board almanac is prepared for a Iinancial year and circulated to the members
and management in advance for effective planning. The Board Committee
meetings are scheduled before the ordinary Board meeting to ensure that all
matters are adequately addressed at the committee level before presentation to
the Board for adoption, approval or direction as the case may be.

The Board held a total of the following Board meetings and various committee
meetings within the fina_ncial year:

a) 6 Ordinary Board Meetings;

b) I Special Board Meeting;

c) 5 Technical Committee (TC) Meetings;

d) 5 Human Resource Committee (HRC) Meetings

e) 6 Finalce Administration and Development Committee Meetings and 1

Special Meeting; and

f) 5 Board Audit Risk Governance (BARG) Meetings;

Board CoEEltteer
In order to discharge its mandate and responsibilities effectively, the Board has
delegated certain tasks to its Committees with a specific maadate. This has been

done in line with the principles of corporate governance, Mwongozo Code of
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Governance for State Corporations and the Second Schedule of the National
Construction Authority Act No. 4l of 2Oll.

The Board has four committees with specific mandate in line with its charter.
The Board considered the professional quarifications, skills and competence in
selection of the committee members. The provisions of the Mwongozo code of
Governance for state corporations were a-lso considered in the composition and
number of committees.

During the period under review, the following Committees were in place;

a) Flnqnce, Adminlatratlon & Development (FAI)I Commlttee
The FAD committee is responsible for recommending frnancial policies, goa-is,

and budgets that support the mission, values, arld strategic goa.ls of the
AuthoritJz. The committee also reviews the Authority's financial performance
against its goals and proposes major tralsactions and development programs for
the Authority. The committee is maldated to review strategies relating to the
Authority's corporate strates/, corporate communications, information
technologr and communication and legal.

MeEbers

l. Mr. Peter Musango Chairperson

2. FA. Paul Kiagu Member

3. Qs. Said Athman, EBS Member

4. Eng. Stephen Kogi Member

5. Eng. Maurice Akech, MBS Executive

Director

6. Mercy Okiro, Adv Member With effect from 9e
Decernber 2022

Rotated on
9th June
2023
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bl Technlcal Commlttee.
This committee is responsible for the technical operations of the Authority. The

committee is responsible for recommending training, research and capacity

building policies, goals, and budgets that support the mission, values, and

strategic goals of the Authority. In relation to registration and compliance, tJre

committee is charged with ensuring that the mandate of the Authority in relation

to registration of contractor and construction workers is carried out effectively

and efliciently. In addition, the committee ensure that adequate policies are put

in place for compliance of a-ll statutory requirements by all the industry

stakeholders.

Memberr

7. Patrick Bucha Member With effect from 96
Decernber 2022

Term ended
on l2rh
April 2023

With effect from
24rhMay 2023

8. Qs. Said Athman, EBS Member

Rotated on
9th
December
2022

9. Kalpesh Hirani Member

10. Prof. Godrick Bulitia Member Rotated on
9th
December
2022

11. Eng. Stephen Kogi,

oGw
Member With effect from 96

December 2022

1 . Mr. Kalpesh Hirani Chairperson

2. Mr. Waweru Gathecha Member

3. Mr. Kennedy Sagini Member

4. Eng. Stephen Kogi, OGW Member

5. Merry Okiro Member Rotated on 9ft
Decernber 2022

6. Eng. Dr. Samuel

Charagu

Member Rotated on 96
Decerlrber 2022

xliii



7. Peter Musalgo Member Rotated on th
December 2022

8. Prof. Godrick Bulitia Member With effect from
9th December
2022

Term ended on
4* May 2023

9. Kennedy Sagini Member With effect from
9th December
2022

10. Eng. Maurice Akech,

MBS

Executive

Director

tde l*,t* -An rts and Financial orlhe Year Ended 2023

cl Human Resource Commlttec
This is the committee of the Board responsible for guidance on human resource

management of the Nationa.l Construction Authority. Its primary responsibilit5r

includes reviewing, monitoring, and making recommendations and policies

regarding human resource management of the Nationa.l Construction Authority.
Mcmbers

I . Prof. Godrick Bulitia Chairperson (until
3RD MAY 2023)

2. Eng. Dr.

Charagu

Samuel Member With effect from
9th December
2022

3. Mr. Peter Musargo Member

4. Mr. Kalpesh Hirani Member

5. Mercy Okiro, Adv. Member With effect from
9tr December
2022

Rotated on 5ff
June 2023

6. Mr.

Gathecha

Waweru Member Rotated on 9ft
December 2022

7. Eng Stephen Kogi,

oGw
Member Rotated on 9trt

December 2022

8. Mr. Kennedy Sagini Member Rotated on 9o
December 2022

9. Eng. Maurice Akech,

MBS

Executive Director
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df Board Audlt, Rlrk & Govcraance Commlttec

The committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the

financial reporting process, the system of internal controls, the audit process,

and the Authority's process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations

and the code of conduct. The risk management role of the Board is a-lso

implemented through this committee through the review of the risk policy and

making recommendations on risk mitigation measures.

Membera

1. Arch. Waweru Gathecha Chairperson

2. FA. Paul Kiagu Member

3. Mr. Kennedy Sagini Member

4. Qs. Patrick Bucha, MBS Member Term ended on 12s April 2023

5. Eng. Dr. Samuel

Charagu, HSC

Member With effect from 9th December

2022

6. Qs. Said Athman, EBS Member With effect from 24th May
2023
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Table 5: Boord. and Committee Attendance from 7st Julg 2O22 to JOth June 2O2J

Full
Board

Special

Board
HRC

Speclal HRC Tcch!ic8l
Cotr!nlttee

BARGC
Spccial

BARGC
FAI)

Speclal

FAI)

No NaEe
EIlgIb

L

Att
God

Gd

I
Qs. David

Gaitho
N/A N/A

2

Mercy

Okiro,

Adv

2 2

3

Prof.

Godrick

Bulitia
2 2

4

Mr.

Kalpesh

Hirani
5 5

5

Arch.

Jackson

Mutua
N/A N/A

6

Eng. Dr.

Samuel

Charagu
2 2
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9. Managcmcnt Dbcutdon and Aadyrlr
The financial year 2022/2023 marks the eleventh year of the Authority since its
establishment in July 2012. Thre Authority remains committed to its mandate of
promoting the development of the construction industry for a sustained socio-

economic development. The key highlights of the Authorit5z's performance for the
period are as outlined below.

Flnancld Pcrformo-cc

a. F-htanclal perlonna nce ln tlgutzs

^ 2.zN Total Revenue Trends

t.

o

= 
2,1s0

2,100

2,050

2,000

1,950

1,900

1,850

1,800

1,750

1,7@

Total Revenue

2,155
2,131

2,046

2,009

1,867

20!a/79

1,867.037 ,252

2019/20

2,046.033.381

2O2O/21

2,130,884,458

2021/2022

2.008.943.37 4

2022/2023

2,154,985,595

F-lgure 7: Reuenue Tt-nds

The tota-l revenue for the Authorit5r for the linancial year 2022/23 increased by 7yo

as compared to the financial year 2O2l/22. The internally generated revenue
increased by 27o/o which is attributable to the performance of the construction
industry and growth in the contractors' register. The support from the Government
in the form of recurrent grants decreased by 5%.
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b. Rctrnue Sourccs

096
Revenue by source

.GoXGrants.ContractorsApplication.Contracto6ReSistration.Conferences.lnvestment.Others

tlgurt 2: Rcucrttr,c by Sowre

The GoK Grants contdbuted 56% of the total revenue for the Authority. The

internally generated revenue contributed 44 o/o from contractors' application fees,

registration fees, receipts from contractors' training workshops and credit interest

lncome,
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c. Err4t,andlfr.trc ftend.s

The recurrent expenditure for the period under review increased by 3yo as

compared to the last financial year. The absorption of allocated funds stood at 98
7o of the recurrent budget.

Total expenditure trends

1,980
2,030

2,000

1,715............. 179'r""" """ "

1,601

1,500

1,000

500

002,5

g

2O1al79

Total expenditure 1,601,LOg,745

2019120

1.714,636.398

2O2O/21

1,7 84,tt4,203

2021/2022

L940,u2,127

2022/2023

2,029,934,17 |

Figutl 3: Recurrent Expcttdlturc Tyends
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d.. Dtcpcndlturc bg Vote

,9
1,100

1,000

900

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

Expense by vote comparison

945

895

732 751

44
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Flgure 4: Dscpendlttttz bg Vote

The Authority's employee costs accounts for 44o/o of the total expenditure for the

period. The expenditure has grown over the years from KShs. 716.78 Million in
the FY 2018/ 19 to KShs. 889.96 Million at the end ot FY 2022/2023. This is

attributed to the growth of stall complement from 293 to a tota.l of 417 in
2018 /2019 and 2022 /2023 respectively. In addition, during the financial year

the Authority reinforced its enforcement activities by having 1 5 ollicers from the

National Police Services seconded to it. The current tota-l work force comprises

of 29O permanent and long-term contract employees and 104 on short term

contract deployed to all Huduma centers and regionals oflices to provide service

across the country.
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u Rcgulatlon

a) Rcglstrrrtlon of Contractors
Section 5(2(dxk)) of NCA act No 4l of 201 1, mandates the Authority to prescribe

the qualifrcations or other attributes required for accreditation of contractors,
registration, and regulation of their professional undertakings. Toward this end,
The Authority has continued to improve on its systems with a view of
streamlining the registration of contractors as one of its core mandate. The

Authority has fully automated the processes for registration of contractors,
renewal of the annua_l practicing license and a_11 other processes related to
contractor registration like appeals, applications for upgrades, trainings, etc.

This in effect has increased the Authority's effrciency by reducing the turn-
around time and brought about with-it positive impact on the ease of doing
business in the country.

Table 6: Reglstered. Co tracto"s (by Certtflcate) tor Fy 2O22/2O2O

Chrrcr of WorL! vrlld 2022123
llcGltor .t o/o of

rcgLt.rcd
c.rtlacrtcrC.t.tory Roedr W.t.r Buildtsr. ElGctrlc.I Xcchr!lcd Totd

NCAI 312 213 519 260 t7t |,475 63.OVo

!tcA2 345 199 454 103 a5 1.r86 53.8%

ltcA3 569 326 616 t67 105 r,783 49.30/o

ncA4 |,775 l.239 2,080 495 341 5,930 44.1o/o

rcAS 2,413 1,475 2,447 386 7,Oza 42.70/"

rca5 4,635 2,5A7 529 324 r 2,331 39.8%

I{CA7 4,5r7 2,344 4,015 558 251 11,685 33.lolo

NCAS 6,987 4,496 7,81 l 731 26t 20,246 2A.60/0

Totrl 2 r,553 t2,479 22,234 3,229 l,809 6r,704 35.20/"

To ensure that the Authority responds appropriately to the dynamic
environment in which it operates, the Authority has initiated the process of
reviewing the enabling Act and the subsequent regulations. This will ensure that
we respond accordingly to the new developments within the industry.
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b) Forelgn Coitrdctors

The National Construction Authority Regulations 2014 provides for the

regulations of foreigrr firms. In line with the provisions of the NCA Regulations

2014, the foreign firms are registered as Category "NCA 1". The firms are

required to sub-contract or enter into a joint venture with a loca-l person or

hrm for not less than 307o of the value of contract works for which

registration is sought and transfer technical skills not available locally to a

local person or firm.

Table 7: Foreign Contractors

Chatcs of VorL. vdtd 2022123
!lcG!... .. 7o of

ratl.tor.d
ccrtlllcrtGaCrtcroay Rordr Wrt.r Bulldl-rr Elactdcd ach.-lcrl Totd

I{CA1-
forclza 9 l5 24 3 5l 30.40/o

The number of foreign contractors registered FY 2022 /2023 was 38. The

Authorit5r undertakes to ensure that foreign contractors strictly adhere to the

regulatory requirements that govern their professional undertakings in the

Kenyan construction Industry in accordance to the NCA Act 2011 and

Regulations 20 14.

c) Accredltatlon of Skllled. Workers and. slte supenrisor:s

Section 5(2) (i) of the National Construction Authority Act No 4l of 2O I 1 ,

maldates the Authority to accredit and certifu construction workers and

construction site supervisors. This is geared towards ensuring that the

industry has qualified and competent manpower with the right mix of skills.

In the FY 2022 /2023 the Authority accredited 9,481 skilled workers and

2,468 site superrrisors in the construction industry across the different

trades.

Tralalng ard Cepeclty Bulldlng

The Authority conducted training and capacity building programs with a tota.l

participation at the end the F\. 2022 /2023 as follows; 9,443 contractors, 17,339

construction workers and 4,594 site superuisors.
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a. Co nstt'tr,ctlo n W o rke r s
Under section 5(2)(i) of the National Authority Act No 41 of 201 1, The Authority
is mandated to provide, promote, review, and co-ordinate training progr€rms

organized by public and private accredited training centers for skilled
construction workers, construction site supervisors and contractors w.ithin the
industry.

TwenQr-frve (25) CTD (Continuous Technica.l Development) programs for
construction workers were conducted in the frnancia.l year with a total of 17,339
construction workers trained in the following programs: Onsite upskilling
trainings conducted in 14 regions, road safet5r training, exit talks mentorship
forums, collaborative trainings and joint capacity building progrzrms with the
National Government CDF in three constituencies.

b. Slte Supenrlsors
under section 5(2)(i) of the Nationa-l Authority Act No 4l of 2011, The Authority
is mandated to provide, promote, review, and coordinate training programs

organized by public arrd private accredited training centers for skilled
construction workers, construction site supervisors and contractors within the
industry.

Eighteen ( 18) CTD (Continuous Technica.l Development) prograrns for site
supenrisors were conducted in the finaacial year with a total of 4,594 site
supervisors trained. They were trained under the following programs; Exit &
career Mentorship Program in 14 regions, the site supervisory skills training
program, road safety training, the online CpD program, the onsite upskilling
program and the joint capacity building programs with the National Government
CDF in three constituencies.

Con,tro,ctors
The construction Authority Act 2011 mandates the Authorit5z to train and build
capacity of contractors across the country. The NCA regulations mandates the
Authority to conduct continuous Professional Development (cpD) programs for

c

liv



Ndn li**- Annual ReDortt and Financi m Li the Year Ended June 30 202 I
registered contractors to enable them qualifu for arlnual renewal and to be

considered for category upgrade. The Construction Industry Training Poliry

Manual, 2022, requires each registered contractor to acquire a minimum of 10

CPD points every year by attending NCA-organized trainings or NCA accredited

training programs offered by other industry stakeholders.

Twelve (f 2) CPD (Continuous Professional Development) programs were

conducted for contractors in the financial year and a total of 9,443 contractors

were trained. The contractors were trained under the following programs; the

online CPD program, the regional CPD program, onsite upskilling program, the

accredited CPD training providers progrErm, road safety training, high impact

MSME program, AGPO contractors' program, sector-based CPD program, the

annual contractors' conference and collaborative CPD prograrns with industry

stakeholders.

lv. Qualtty A;lusarce

The Authority under Section 5(2) (g) of the NCA act 2O11 is mandated to

promote and ensure quality assurance in the construction industry. Quality

Assurance is a technica-l and professional site inspection of a construction

projects undertaken by Compliance Department through the Regional

Coordinators to ascertain conformity to construction standards and

specilications in accordance to laws and regulations governing construction.

During the financial years under review, the Authority carried out site

inspections across the country to ensure compliance with the construction

laws and regulations. All the non-compliant sites are suspended ald
Suspension of Works Order issued. Upon compliance with the requirements

as per set checklist, a Lifting of suspension of Works Order is issued.
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Flgure 5: ProJect Inspections

In the last three financia-l years of 2ot9/2o2o,2o2o/2021 and 2o2t /2022 there
was a steady increase on the tota.l number of inspected construction sites.

Project Registratlon
The Authority under Section 5(2) (i) of the NCA act 20l l is mandated to initiate and
maintain a construction industry information system. During the frnancial years
under review, the Authority registered a number of construction projects as shown
on the table below.

Table 8: Project Registration

2A1a/2019

t Comphant sites

Financial Year Applications
Received

Applications
A ved

o/o of
approvals

2018/2Ot9 62A2 3242 52o/o
2Ot9 /2O2O 4992 3479 7Oo/o
2O2O/2O2t 5590 387s 690/o
2O2L /2022 6t94 3890 630/o
2022/2023 5299 3947 7 5o/o
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Flgure 6: ProJect Reglstratlon Trends

Y. Scrrlcc Dcllvety

a. Human Resource
The Authority's current approved stalf establishment stands at 417 posts. Of this

number, 290 positions are currently occupied by members of stalf in various cadres

deployed at the headquarters and regional oflices. 104 are on a two-year contract

and have been deployed in the 52 Huduma Centers across the country, two in each

Centre.

As required over 7Oo/o of the total HR strength constitutes technical stalf while the

rest offer support services. Currently the Authority has presence 14 regional and

l3liaison offices across the country. The Authority received approval from the oflice

of the Head of Public Service and the National Treasury to fill 19 additional

positions in the establishment which was done n 2022 /2023 financial year.

In keeping with the government policy and the spirit of providing opportunities for

the youth, the Authority has been working closely with the Public Service

Commission and the ICT Authority to place young graduates on an internship

programme. In conjunction with local universities ald colleges, the Authority also

engages students on apprenticeship and industrial attachment. ln th.e 2022/2023

financial year, a total of 280 students were engaged in internship, apprenticeship

and industrial attachment programmes in line with the performance contract.

6282 6194
5590 s299

4992

3875 3890 3987

x282 3479

I
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A tota.l of 50 diploma holders were engaged on apprenticeship to leam on the job in
the Authority's regiona-l and liaison ofhces. Further, working with various
institutions, universities and colleges across the country, the Authority continues
to provide opportunities for industria-l attachment to students as partial fullilment
for their graduation

yt. hrbllc Awarenees and Sencltlzatlon Campalgns

a. Conrtructlon Excellence Awards

The construction Excellence Awards was launched on 27th september 2022, with
a bottom-line objective of recognizing the achievements, developments and
innovation within Kenya's construction industry. The event targeted professional

consultants and solution providers. It aimed at highlighting the positive aspects of
constn-rction, celebrate qualit5z assura_nce, commitment to excellence and
technological innovations within the industry.

The Awards Gala dinner took place on the 27th of January 2023, at the Radisson
Biue hotel. The applicants for the award included contractors, who were divided
into two categories: top category who were NCA 1 to 4 and special category, NCA 5
to 8. The second group included the site supervisors, who were awarded on three
levels; Overall winner, lst runners up, 2nd runners up and the frnalists.

The Jury which comprised of experts from both the public and private sectors, and
across various facets of the construction industry executed its responsibilities
through a four-phase procedure as follows; initia.l eva.luation, interviews, site visits
and frnal eva-luation. The culmination of the process was able to produce winners,
runners-up and flna-lists in various Award categories. The winners were awarded
with encouraging prizes to motivate them continue with implementing best
practices and embracing innovation in the construction industry.

b. Rcrolution of hrbllc Complalnto
The Authority actively resolves all complaints channelled to its regional, Iiaison and
headquarter oflices, in accordance to the guidelines from the commission on
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Administrative Justice. In the third qua.rter of the frnancial year 2022/2023, the

Authority received a score of 8lo/o. The score emanated from the results of the

following activities: Resolution of Complaints, Access to Information and Awareness

Creation Initiatives.

c. Cor?oratc Socld Rcrponetblltty

The Authority is committed to recognize and manage its impact in society ald to
see that its own activities and where applicable those of its stakeholders are being

undertaken in a socially and environmentally responsible manner. The Authority

signed a memorandum of understanding and has adopted 4 acres of Ngong forest

to plant and grow trees over a three-year period. This is aligned with the presidential

initiative of tree restoration program aimed at combating the elfects of climate

change in the country.
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1O. Enrlronmental and Sustalnabllit5r Reportlng
The National Construction Authority exists to transform the construction industry
by regulating and coordination of its development. This is our purpose; the driving
force behind ever5rthing we do. It's what guides us to deliver our stratery, which is
founded on the NCA Act No 47 of 2Ol1: putting the customer/Citizen lirst,
delivering relevant policies and serrrices, and improving operational excellence.

i) Surtalnablllty strateg/ and prollle
a) Suetalnablllty of ilCA

In order to sustain its operations, the Nationa.l Construction Authority has in place

its Strategic Plan. 2O2O-2O25. It provides a blueprint that will enable the

organization to provide proper strategic direction in Kenya,s dynamic construction
industry. The Strategic Plan is therefore imperative as it avails an opportunity to
outline strategies for tackling the challenges anticipated, recognizing the past
lessons learnt, ald identifying the performance gaps witnessed in the recent past
while effectively determining the critical success factors that should subsequently
inform future planning. Based on this contextual analysis, the Authority
formulated its strategic objectives it will pursue over the next five years, while
consistentiy engaging key stakeholders at all levels.

bf Coopetltlvenees of NCA

To be competitive, the Authority commits to the development arrd operationalization
of institutiona.l frameworks and procedures that will enable it to achieve its core

mandate in conformity with the Government's overa-Il Development Agenda. The

Authority recognizes that its success is related to innovation, effective charrge

management and continuous engagement with key stakeholders in the
Construction Industry.

Above all, the Board shall give management fuli support during the impiementation
of its strategic Plan, provide necessary oversight and lobby for the required
resources to achieve the goals and objectives set out in the plan.
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Further, the Board will sustain existing linkages with relevant Government

Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs) to ensure consistenry and enhance

synerry to enable the Authority play its role towards effective realization of the

Kenya Vision 2030 and the Big Four development agenda.

ii) Envlronme ntal pcrformaace

The Authority is committed to comp\ring wilt all regulatory and other policy

guidelines concerning environmental management including putting in place

efforts, to manage and mitigate environmental impact of the organization's products

and services, management of biodiversit5r and waste management. The Authority is

undertaking a policy frame work to guide on this and once approved, shall be rolled

out.

To ensure compliance arrd promote environmental conservation grridelines

and other statutory frame works, The Authority has tal<en the following

actions: -

(a) Partnering with Kenya Green Building Society on waste management and put

in place measures to promote adoption of green building concepts in the

country.

(b) The Authority also has an annua-l plan to support the government efforts to

increase the forest cover by planting trees.

(c) Continued to adopt an oflice open plan system as a way of promoting enerry

conservation mechanisms in al effort to promote a green environment.

(d) Adopted online meetings to reduce on movements and reduce on emissions

iii) Enployee eclfare
The Authority has a robust hiring poliry whose statement is to recruit stafi on

the basis of fair competition and merit; representation of Kenya's diverse

communities; adequate and equal opportunities to all gender, youth, members

of all ethnic groups, persons with disabilities and minorities. The current gender

ratio at the Authority is 39:61 in favour of male employees this meets the

constitutional threshold. However, our target is to eventually achieve 50/5O for

either gender. The Authority has constantly reviewed the Human Resource
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Policies and procedures to align them with the various government circulars and
legislations. Necessaqr consultations and stakeholder participation are usually
conducted during such reviews to ensure that the policies are all inclusive aIId
have a buy-in among the public and the immediate stakeholders.

The Authority has an approved Career Progression Guidelines which provide

insight to sta-ff on their upward mobitity in the various cadres and professions

within departments.

Additionally, the Authority every two years conducts a Training Needs

Assessment (TNA) which informs the preparation of the annual training
projections. The training plan informs the Authority on the skills gaps that exist
and how they should be filled. The Authority further eva-luates the individual
performance of its stalf by conducting a bi-annua.l appraisal system which leads

to any of the following; has in place stalf reward scheme, sanctions or
performance improvement prograrnmes. The Authorit5z is a-lso committed to
providing and maintaining working conditions, equipment and systems of work,
that are safe and healthy for all employees, visitors and other persons at or nea-r

its operationa-I areas. The Authority has a lactation room for mothers, provides
medica.l covers to its stall Thus, it strictly upholds the tenets of its policy on
occupation health ald safety.

The Authority has also put in place robust initiatives geared towards improving
the welfare of employees as foliows;

National construction Authority staff Retirement Benefits scheme which
handles the retirement benefits for stalf;

a) NATCoN sACCo is a deposit taking SACCo where Authority stalf are able to
safe and receive credit;

b) car loan and Mortgage schemes where staff are able to secure loans at lower
interest rates to procure cars and homes respectively;

c) All stall are provided with medical insurance cover, group life cover, group
personal accident cover and WIBA.
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d) National Construction Authority Sta-ff Welfare Association (NACASWA) is a

contributory stalf welfare association that takes care of staJf when they pass on

or lose close family members;

e) Lactation room for mothers - the Authority has put in place a lactation room at

the headquarters which caters for Iactating mothers among stalT in compliance

on occupation hea.lth and safety policy.

iv) Market place practlcer

af Reqponslblc competltlon practlce

The Nationa.l Construction Authority (NCA) Anti-Corruption Policy is intended to

outline a framework for ensuring a cormption-free working environment. In this

endeavour it is noteworthy that NCA is motivated by ideals enshrined in its
Mandate, Vision, Mission, Core Values and the prevailing laws. NCA recognizes that

the ideal of a culture of zero-tolerarce to corruption is only possible within a

framework of integrity and ethics.

The Authority is implementing an Anti-cormption Policy to supplement legal

provisions and other government initiatives for fighting and preventing cormption

in Kenya. The poliry seeks to provide a framework for eflicient and effective

detection and prevention of cormption at the workplace.

Section 5(2(d[k)) of NCA act No 4 1 of 201 I , mandates the Authority to prescribe

the qualifications or other attributes required for registration of contractors and

regulation of their professional undertakings. Toward this end, the Authority

has continued to improve on its systems with a view of streamlining the

registration of contractors as one of its core mandates. The Authority has fully

automated the processes for registration of contractors with registration process

being competitive in Iine with the approved eva.luation criteria. The contractors

are registered under different class of works under diJlerent categories (NCAI -

NCA8 \Mith NCA I being the highest category and NCA 8 the lowest) dependent

on their capacity thus promoting fair competition in the industry.

bl Respons{ble Supplg chaln an,d suppller relatlons
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Suppliers are very critical partners in the Authority's operations, they facilitate
our actMties and contributes to timely delivery of the authority's objectives. The

Authority contributes to supplier development by training the suppliers on
procurement procedures and emerging issues in procurement, The Authority
always invite suppliers for pre-bid meetings to appraise them on requirements
for submission of the tender to improve on their responsiveness. In addition, the
Authority carries out suppliers visit when doing due diligence and appraisal to

assess their capacity and compliance to statutory requirements. This
contributes to competitiveness in the supply chain environment hence

achievement of value for money.

cf Responslble morketlng and aduertlsement
The Authorit5r, in line with its corporate values, upholds the standards of ethical
marketing. This is done by ensuring all advertising arrd marketing
communications are all truthful and fact based, and the ollicers tasked with
communicating also uphold the highest standards of personal ethics. A1l the
Authority's clients and other stakeholders are keated fairly and equitably, and
their privacy is honoured and upheld, especially when it comes to personal

information. Additionally, the Authority abides with the existing regulations and
standards governing externa.l communication.

ill Pioduct steuard,shlp
The Authority is a regulator, and thus a service-based organization. Consumer
rights are safeguarded through the complaints handling mechanism that
ensures the eflicient resolution of public complaints. All complaints are recorded
and resolved, where possible, within seven days as outlined in the Citizen
Service Delivery Charter. A report on the same is compiled and submitted to the
Commission on Administrative Justice, where a quarterly score is awarded,
followed by an annual compliance certificate. The Authority in this linancial year
attained a score of 9lo/" ("Y ery Good").

v) Corporate Soclal Responsibtltty /Community engageneBta
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The Authority has aligned its Corporate Social Responsibility with the

Sustainable Development Goals. This is in line with SDG4 "Ensure inclusive and

equitable quality education and promote lifelong leaming opportunities for all'.
The Authority in partnership with the State Department of Early Lrarning and

Basic Education launched the Ujenzi Club, meant to engage students at

primary, seconda4r and tertiar5r levels. The Ujenzi Club is an initiative aligrred

to the pillars of the new curriculum which is inclined to Science, Technolory,

Engineering and Mathematics Stream (STEM). The club aims at introducing

construction concepts to students at a young age and encouraging the pursuit

of construction related careers / trades to "develop relevant skills, for

employment, decent jobs and entrepreneurship".
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11. Report of the Dlrector.
The Directors submit their report together with the audited frnancial statements for
the year ended June 30,2023, which show the state of the Authority affairs.

tf Pr,lactpal actlvltlea
The principal activity of the Authority is to regulate the construction industry and
coordinate its development.

ii) Reeults

The results of the National Construction Authority for the year ended June 30th

2023 are set out on page I to 7.

lllf Dlrectors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year .rre shown on
page xi to :o<iii. During the financia.l year, Dr. Eng. Samuel Charagu HSC and es.
Said Athman, EBS were appointed as Board Members on 25h August 2022 and.

12tt, April 2023 respectively. The terms of Arch. Jackson Mutua, es. David Gaitho,
MBS, Dr. Qs. Patrick M. Bucha, MBS and Prof.Godrick Bulitia ended on 25s
August 2022, l9*, January 2023,l2th April 2023 and 46 May 2023 respectively.

ivl Sutplua remission

In accordance with Section 219 l2l of the Public Financial Management Act
regulations, regulatory entities sha-ll remit into Consolidated Fund, ninet5r per
centum of its surplus funds reported in the audited financial statements after the
end of each Iinancia-l year. The Authority remitted Kshs 98,634,023 in the Fy
2022 /2023 to the consolidated Fund. The declared surplus to be remitted to the
fund for the FY 2022 /2023 is Kshs. 1 15,6 f 6,805 as reported in the statement of
financial performance.
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vl Audltorr
The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Authority in
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act

2015 for the year ended June 30, 2023.

By Order of the Board

En8. U.udcG Aloch, fBS
kccutlvc Dlrcctor/Sccrctery to thc Boerd

I ,,
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12. Statement of Dlrectore Recponsibilitlee

The Public Finance Management Act 2012 Sec. 81, the Nationa-l Construction
Authority Act Sec. 35 and the State Corporations Act Cap 446 Sec. 14, require the

Board to prepare annua] financia-l reports in respect of National Construction
Authority, which give a true and fair view of the state of allairs of the Authorit5r at
the end of the frnancial year and its operating results for that year. The Board is
also required to ensure that the Authority keeps proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy the frnancia-l position of the Authority. The Board
is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority.

The Board is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Authority
financia.l statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Authority for and as at the end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2023. This
responsibilit5z includes :

(i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring
that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the finalcial position of the Authority;
(in) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the

preparation ald fair presentation of the hnancial statements, and
ensuring that they are free from materia.l misstatements, whether due to
error or fraud;

(rq safeguarding the assets of the Authority;
(v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; ald
(vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board accepts responsibility for the Authority's financia] statements, which have

been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates, in conformit5r with International public sectors
Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the ma_nner required by the pFM Act arrd the
state corporations Act. The Board is of the opinion that the Authority's financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Authority's transactions
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during the financial year ended June 30th, 2023, and of the its financial position as

at that date. The Board further confirm the completeness of the accounting records

maintained for the Authority, which have been relied upon in the prepa-ration of the

Authority's finalcial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal

financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board to indicate that the Authority will

not remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months from tJ:e date of this

statement.

Approvd of thc Ilnaacld ltetcncrt!

The Au on 's financial statements were approved by the Board on

023 arld signed on its behalf by:

Mcrcy Llro, Adv Eng. Meurlcc A.kcch, MBS,

Accountlag OfficcrVlcc Chalrpcrroa thc Board
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lavvfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ad,20'12 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Construction Authority
set out on pages 1 to 48, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Na,ional Conslruction Authority*for the year ended 30 June, 2023



30 June, 2023, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, a
statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 ol lhe
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, lhe financial position of the National Construction Authority as at 30 June,2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the National Construction Authority Act,
2011.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. UnsupporGd Expenditure on Temporary Staff

The statement of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.889,955,210 in
respect of employee costs which, as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements,
includes an amount of Kshs.802,924,637 relating to salaries and wages. The latter
balance further includes an amount of Kshs.53,415,918 relating to wages paid to casual
staff during the year. However, review of records and contract documents revealed that
Management did not provide requisitions from various departments/regions detailing
number of casuals required or requested, period they will be engaged, scope of work and
the expected output.

Further, Management did not explain the procedure followed in sourcing of the casuals
and the criteria used to select the engaged or successful persons.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and regularity of the casual wages expenditure
of Kshs.53,415,918 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.335,631,679 as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements. Review of records
revealed the amount includes accounts payables balance of Kshs.55,718,726 which
further includes a balance of Kshs.3,098,1'l 1 whose supporting documents were not
provided for audit.

Further, the balance includes provisions and accruals amount of Kshs.243,801 ,468 which
includes a balance of Kshs.2,721,395 related to various Authority's projects as detailed
in the table below;

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on National Conslruclion Aulhoritylor the yeor ended 30 June, 2021
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Document No. Oescription
Amount
(Kshs.)

PRVS-2020/2021-
001

Provision of Broadband lnternet Services
Primary Lebal Switch System (MPLS)

177,223

PRVS-2020/2021-
006

Provisaon of Consultancy Services on ISO
Recertification and Surveillance Audit

1,291,980

PB-06-2020
Provision of Third QMS Surveillance Audit in
April, 2020

1,252,192

Total 2,721,395

However, the project implementation status reports and supporting documents for the
operating expenditure amounting to Kshs.2,721,395 were not provided for audit
verification. ln addition, the balance includes prepaid levy amount of Kshs.24,251,869
which as previously reported has been long outstanding. No explanation has been
provided by Management on who is owed the money.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the trade and other payables
balance of Kshs.335,631,679 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSA|s). lam independent of the National Construction Authority
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, a number of issues were raised under the Report
on the Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, Management has not resolved the issues or given explanations
why the matters have remained outstanding.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness

Report ofthe Auditor-General on National Constuction Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Officers in Acting Capacity Beyond Stipulated Time

The statement of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.889,955,210
incurred on compensation of employees as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial
statements. Review of Human Resources and Payroll records revealed that during the
year, three (3) employees continued to serve in acting capacities beyond the stipulated
period of six (6) months while two (2) staff members continued to earn special duty
allowance beyond the stipulated period of six (6) months. This is contrary to Section C.14
(1) of the Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for Public Service, May 2016
which states that when an officer is eligible for appointment to a higher post and is called
upon to act in that post pending advertisement of the post, he/she is eligible for payment
of acting allowance at the rate of twenty percent (20oh) of his substantive basic salary.
Acting allowance will not be payable to an officer for more than six (6) months. Further,
Section C.15 (4) states that Special Duty Allowance will not be payable to an officer for
more than six (6) months.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the guidelines

2. Un-procedural lnternational Trainings for Board Members

The statement of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.66,197,842 in
respects of Board expenses which, as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements
includes an amount of Kshs.1 0,624,903 as training expenses out of which
Kshs.5,519,365 was in respect of international trainings for Board members. However,
review of records revealed that Management did not provide the training needs
assessment used to identify the various competency needs for the Board Members. The
processes through which the various programmes were identified could not be
established. Management did not provide evidence that the Board kaining programmes
were brought to the attention of SCAC for organizing of the training locally or brought to
the attention of Government training institutions for hosting or organizing of the same
where feasible. This was a contravention of Circular No OP.CAB.9/1A dated
11 March,2020.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the guidelines.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nqtional Construction AuthoriD,Ior the yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Long Outstanding Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

As disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects a netbalance of Kshs.1 ,145,883,541 in respectof receivables from non-exchange
transactions which constitutes balances of Kshs.674,581,333, Kshs.97,565,216 and
Kshs.373,736,991 in respect of receivables, accrued income and staff schemes,
respectively. Review of records relating to the balance revealed that the receivable
balance of Kshs.674,581,333 includes a gross debtors balance of Kshs.1,658,529,434 as
at 30 June, 2023 oul of which, an amount of Kshs.1,068,902,185 was deducted as
impairment allowance. However, the ledgers provided for audit review shows that
Kshs.1,652,710,660 or 99.6% has been outstanding for long. This amount relates to levy
charges which have been brought forward from previous financial years and whose
recoverability remains doubtful. Although Management has explained that the Authority
has taken some measures, including the engagement of Kenya Revenue Authority to
recover these debts, no tangible result has been realized.

Further, the receivable balance of Kshs.674,581 ,333 includes sundry debtors balance of
Kshs.3,584,700. Review of the supporting documents revealed that the balance was a
borrowing by the State Department for Public Works vide a letter dated 31 October, 20'18
to assist in Medium Term Expenditure Framework Sector activities. The amount was to
be reimbursed to the Authority upon operationalization of the budget vote. Although
Management requested for reimbursement vide two letters, the State Department had not
yet reimbursed the amount as at 30 June 2023.

Further, the receivables balance of Kshs.674,581,333 includes prepayments balance of
Kshs.74,769,289 which further includes an amount of Kshs.6,179,843 which as
previously reported is a prepayment to Konza Technopolis Development Authority.
Review of the documents provided revealed that the payment was made on
21 September, 2020 for purchase of 6.4acresof land forthe construction of the proposed
Centre for Construction lndustry Development (CCID). Through a letter daled 27
November, 2020, through the State Department of Public Works, The National Treasury
advised the Authority to engage Konza Technopolis Development Authority (KoTDA) for
allocation of 6.4 acres at no cost since the CCID project is for the public use and KoTDA

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nationdl Conslruction Aulhoritt,for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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had been allocated land by the Government at no cost for such projects. No explanation
has been provided on the status of Kshs.6,179,843 already paid for the parcel of land.

ln the circumstances, the recoverability of the receivables balance of Kshs.674,581 ,333
could not be ascertained.

2. Lack ofa Functional Board

Review of the records revealed that the Authority operated for five (5) months without a
Board Chairperson after the lapse of the previous Chairperson's term on
19 January,2023. The Board has therefore lacked the leadership and direction from the
centre of command.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the Board to offer oversight role to the Authority
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and

Report ofthe Auditor-General on National Constuction Authori4,for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governanc€
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

Report of the Auditot-Generql on Nalionql Construction Authoity for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Authority to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA a cBs
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

02May,2024

Report o/the Auditor-General on Nqtiondl Construction Authorityrt)r he yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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14. Statctreat of Flnanclal Pcrformaace for thc ycar endcd 3O Juae 2O2B

Rerteted

Rcvcnuc fron lon-erchrngc
treaeectloae
Transfers from other
government entities

6
1,202,300,000 1,260,O00,000

Contractors Application fees 7 86,058,005 53,0r4,894
Contractors Registration fees 8 289,510,163 163,689,822
Contractors Renewal fees 9 44r,912,880 416,640,O42
Accreditation of Construction
Workers 10 141,001 660,000
Upgrade fees 1l 82,580,453 54,189,532

2,1o2,5,o/2,5o.2 1,948,194,29O
Rcvcnue from erchaage
traaractlonr

Conferences and Workshops t2 41,496,200 49,745.350
Credit Interest l3 8,886,994 9,527,964
Other Income t4 2, r00,000 r,475,770
Totd Revcnue 2,154,985,695 2,OOa.943,574

Expcaree
Use of goods and services 15 950,959,223 1,010,054,392
Employee costs 16 889,955,210 831,827.251
Board ES t7 66,197,a42 36,535,121
Repairs and Maintenance 18 36,786,565 39,600,540
Depreciation 19 85,46r,542 63,625,767
Taxes 20 567,7A9 314,991
Totd Erponcer 2,O29,928,t71 1,981,959,062
Othcr galat/ {loerccl
Gain/ loss on foreign exchange
transactions 27 3,415,592 8,874,O54

Surplur/ lDctlcltl for the
pcrlod 128,473,117 35,859.366
Rcmlrslon to Natlonal
Trcaruqr
Nct Surplut for the Ycar 124,473,117 35,859,366
Attributable to:
Surplus/ (deficit) attributable to
minority interest 72,847,312 3,585,937
Surplus attributable to owners
of the controlling Entity 1 r 5,625,805 32,273,430

128,479,117 35,859,366



Nde lxm- Amual Reports and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended June 30. 2023

The notes set out on pages I to 7 form an integral part of these Financial
Statements. The Financial Statements set out on pages 7 to 44 were signed on
behalf of the Board of Directors by:

Eng. Maurlcc Alcch, DIBS CPA. Chrt*tnc Klrlml
Accountlng Officcr llcad of Flnarrcc

ICPN( M/Ito:5512

Mcrcy Otlro, Adv

Vlcc Chalrnaa of thc
Board

oatc 30 lxl- 23 D^& Bq1Pcus Patc 3 D (,1 n3
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15 Statencrt of Flnanclal Poeltloa ar at 3O June 2023

Reatatcd

The financial statements set out on pages I to 7 were signed on behalf of the Board
of Directors by

Eng. Ueurlce Alech, MBS

Accountlng Ofllcer
CPA. Chrtsttac Klrlml
Head of Flnaace

Mcrcy Oklro, Adv

Vlce Chalrman of the
Boerd

ICPAIT M/No:5512
uate lellqfirof3

3

ASAETS
Currcnt Aceetc
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions 22 r,145,883,541 1,733,662,76r

Cash & Cash Equivalents 23 201 ,590,300 267,OOO,4t4
Totd Current Assets 1,3,471473,841 1,4(X),663,175
Non-Currert Asrete
Property, Plant & Equipment 24 257,r88,744 200,515,907
Intangible Assets 25 168,814,48r 168,814,481
Total Non-Curcnt A8set. 426,OO2,625 369,330,388
TOTAL AESETA 1,779,4761465 1,769,993,662

LIABILITIES
Current Llebllltlee
Trade ald other Payables 26 335,63 1,679 467,O51,48L
Total Curent Llabllltler 335,(31,679 467,051,481

IYET ASSETS \437,A44,7A6 1,3o21942,O82

Reserves 48,771,229
Accumulated Surplus r,329,O73,557 1,242,942,Oa2
Development Fund 20,000,000 20,000,000
TOTAT ITET ASSETA AT{D
LIABILITIES 1,4s7,8.44,7A6 1,3,o2,942,082

Datc ,4€t aa73
Date 3o I' l*



Ndalm* Annual Reoorts and Financi Slatemenu for the Year Ended June 30, 2023
16. Stetcmeut of Chr'tge. ln IYct Artcts for thc year endcd 30 Jurc 2023

Ar et 1d July,
2()21 r,243,472,607 1,243,472,607

Surplus for the
year 35,859,366 35,859,366

Capital Grants 20,o00,000 20,000,o00
Restatement 3,610,108 3,610,108

As Restated
Prior year
adiustments t6,292341 16,292,381

Surplus
Remittallce (98,634,023) (98,634,023)

Revaluation 84,771,229 84,77t,229

A! et l.t July,
20/22 1,200,600,440 20,000,000 88,771,229 1,309,371,669
Surplus/ (Defrcit)
for the year 128,473,r17 128,473,t17

Capital Grants

I
rII
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nda Annual Reoorts and Financial StatemenLs for the Ye-ar Ended June 30. 2023
17. Stetcmcat of Carh Flosr for thc year eadcd 3O Junc 2023

Reatatcd

Carh flosr from opcratlng
actlvltlcr
Rccclpt3
Traasfers from other govemment
entities 1,202,300,000 1,260,000,000

Contractors Application fees 86,058,005 53,014,894
Contractors Registration fees 289,510, 163 t63,689,422
Contractors Renewa.l fees 441,912,8AO 416,640,O42
Registration of Workers 141,00 1 660,O00
Upgrade fees 82,580,453 54,189,532
Conferences and Workshops 41,496,200 49,745,350
Consultancy
Investment Income 8,886,994 9,527,964
Other Income 2,100,000 r,475,770
Totd Rccclpts 2,154,985,695 2rOO8,9431374
PaJrEents
Use of goods and seryices 950,959,223 1,010,054,392
Employee costs 889,9s5,210 831,827,251
Board expenses 66,197,842 36,535, 121
Repairs and Maintenance 36,786,565 39,600,540
Taxes 567,789 314,991
Total parrECDt. 1,94r$6,629 1,918,332,295
Gain on foreign exchange
transactions 3,415,592 8,474,O54

Impairment 4,700,000
Adluetmcnt for worklng capltal
Chrrrgcs
Increasee/ Decrease in non-current
receivables (12,22O,78O1 42,367,488

increase/Decrease in Trade payables
and accmals (13r,419,8O1) 142,332,704

Net caeh llowe from/lu.cd lnl
operatlng actlvltler 7O,294,O78 288,885,324
Ca:h flosr from lnvcetlng
actlvltlcs
hrrchase of PPE and Intaagible
assets (53,362,s50) (87,t4O,0271

Purchase of investments
Sale of investments 15,140,532
l{et carh flowr from/(ulcd lnl
lnvcrtlng actlvltler (53,362,55O1 17t,999.4951
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r.rCnlxm- Amual Reports and Financial Statements
for the Year 3

Carh flosr ftom flneaclag
ectlvltlct
Proceeds from borrowings
Remittance of Surplus (98,634,023) (544,627,287l'
Prior Year Adjustment 16,292,381 (s71,008)
Itlct carh flosr ftom flaenctag
Actlvltlce 182,341,&21 (545,198,2951

Nct lncrcerc/ldccrcercf ln carh I
Cerh Equlvalcnt (65,41O,114) (1328.312,#61

Cash and cash equivalents at I JuIy
2022 267,OOO,4r4 595,312,879

Carh errd cerh cqulvalettr at 30
Junc 2O23 23 201,59O,3(X) 267,@0,414
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Nde Annual Renorls and Financial Statements for the Year June 30. 2023

19. I[otes to the FlDanclal Statemeats
1. General Informatlon

National Construction Authority is established by and derives its authority
and accountability from the National Construction Act No. 4l of 2011. The

Authority is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in
Kenya. The entity's principal activity is to regulate and coordinate the

development of the construction industry.

2. Statement of Cornpllaace aad Barir of Prcparatlon

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except

for the measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant

and equipment, marketable securities and financial instruments at fair
value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions.

It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying

the Authority's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexit5r, or where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of these

financia-l statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya

Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Authority.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM

Act, the State Corporations Act, National construction Authority Act and

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting
policies adopted have been consistently apptied to all the years presented.

8



Nd,e i Annual Renorts and Financial Sn for the Year Ended 30. 2023
Noter to thc Financlal Staternentc (Contlnued|

3. Adoptlon of llcw arld Rovlgcd Standardr
a) Neu and amended stand.ards and. interpretations in issue effectiue in the

gear ended 30 June 2O23.

IPSAS 41:

Financial

Instruments

Appllcablc: lrt Januaty 2O23:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for

the financial reporting of financial assets and fiabilities

that will present relevant and useful information to
users of finaacial statements for their assessment of
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's
future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with
more usefi.rl information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applyrng a single classification and

measurement model for financial assets that
considers the characteristics of t}te asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the

asset is held;

. Applyrng a single forward-looking expected

credit loss model that is applicable to all
financial instruments subject to impairment

testing; and

. Applyrng an improved hedge accounting model

that broadens the hedging arrangements in
scope of the guidance. The model develops a

strong link between an Entity's risk
management strategies and the accounting

treatment for instruments held as part of the

risk management strateS/.

IPAAS 42:
Social Benefrts

Appllcablc: l.t rraauarr/ 2023
The objective of this Standard is to improve

relevance, faithful representativeness

the

and

9



Nde lsm- 02Financial ta

comparability of the information that a reporting

Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users

of the financial statements and general-purpose

financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the

Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social

benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benelits provided on the

Entity's financial performance, financial position

and cash flows.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I,
Financial

Instruments

Appllcablc: lst Jenuary 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance

related to the components of borrowing costs

which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS

41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative

examples on hedging and credit risk which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was

issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the

guidance for accounting for frnancial

guaranteed contracts which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the

guidance on classi$ing financial instruments

on initial adoption of accnral basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was

issued.

Other

improvements

to IPSAS

Altpllcablc 7a January 2O23

o IP,9{S 22 Dbclasure of Financiol Information about

the General Gouemmant Sector. Amendments to

t0



xCa i*m- ual R Stat ded June

b) New and amended. sta ndard.s antd. tnterynetatlons ln issue but not
get eflcctlae ln the gear ended, 3O June 2O25.

refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

/PSAS 39; Emplogee BeneJi*. Now deletes the term
composite social security benefits as it is no longer

defined in IPSAS.

IPSAS 29: Flnancial lngtruments: Rccognltlon
arrd fcasurcmeat. Standard no longer included in
the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded

by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from lst JanuarSr

2023.

a

IPSAS 43 Appllcable 7d January 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The

objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide

relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents

those transactions. This information gives a basis for users
of financial statements to assess the ellect that leases have

on the financial position, financial performance and
cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure

and present information on right of use assets and lease

liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Appllcable 7a January 2O25

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale

to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell artd the depreciation of such assets

to cease and:

ll



nCe ism-A ort r Ended June 30 2023

c) Earlg adoptlon of standards
The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the

financial year 2022 /2023

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale

to be presented separately in the statement of frnancial

position and the results of discontinued operations to be

presented separately in the statement of financial

performance.

t2



rude Annual Reoorts and Financial Statements for the Ended June 30. 2023
Notes to the flnaacial stetcments lcontlnuedf

4. Summary of Signlf,caat Accountlng Policiet
af Reveaue rccoglition
lf Rcvcnuc from non-erchangc tranractlons

Fecs, taxea and llnes
The Authority recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the

event occurs and the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that
ttrere is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to
repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue.

Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the

future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset

will flow to the Entity and the fair value of the asset carl be measured

reliably.

Transfers from other governmcrt entltles
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government

entities are measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control
ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is free from
conditions ald it is probable that the economic benefits or seryice

potential related to the asset will flow to the Authority and can be

measured reliably. To the extent that there is a related condition attached
that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, the amount is
recorded in the statement of financial position and realised in the
statement of financial performance over the useful life of the assets that
has been acquired using such funds.

llf Rcvcnue from exchangc tranrectlons
Renderlng of serelccs

The Entity recogrizes revenue from rendering of serrrices by reference to
the stage of completion when the outcome of the transaction can be

estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to
labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour
hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue

is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are

recoverable.

Interest lncome

l3



r.rCalgm" A I Reoorts and Financial Slatemenls for the Ended June 30. 2023
Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective

yield discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrJring amount. The method applies

this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income each

period.

bl Budgct lnforantlon

The original budget for the Current FY was approved by ttre National

Assembly ot 2O23. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were

made to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from

the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the

original budget by the Entity upon receiving the respective approvals in
order to conclude the frnal budget. Accordingly, the Entity recorded

additional appropriations of Statement of Budget Comparison and Actual

Amounts on the 2023 budget following the governing body's approval.

t4



Hda Annual Renorts and Financial Stalements for the Year Ended June 30. 2023

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements (Conttnuedf

Summary of Slgnlflcant Accounting Policles (Contlnuedf

Budget information (contlnuedf

The Authority budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in the f,rnancial statements. The financial statements are

prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses

in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a

cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the

accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassihed by presentation to be on the
same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actua-l

amounts, prepared on a compErrable basis to the approved budget, is then
presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In
addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the hnancial
statements are also made for differences in the formats and classification
schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the
approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable
basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actua.l amounts
and the actuals as per the statement of frnancial performance has been

presented under section l8 of these financial statements.

l5



N M*n Annual Renort.s and Fi al Statements the Year June 30. 2021Ce
IYotcs to thc Flnaaclal Statcoentr lCoattnucd)
Summary of Slgtrlrlcatrt Accouatlng Policlcr lConttnued)

c| Property, plant and equlpment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is

direcfly attributable to the acquisition of t}re items. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the

Entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives

and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and

equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. AII other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as

incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange tralsaction for nil
or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

df Leascc

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks

and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Authority.

Operating lease pa5rments are recognized as an operating expense in surplus

or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

l6



Nda Annual Reports and Financial Statemenls for the Year Ended June 30. 2023
Notcs to the Flnanclal Statemente (Coatlnuedf

Summary of Signiflcant Accountiag Policiee lCoatlnuedf

ef Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at

the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are

carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment

losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development

costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the

period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible

assets is assessed as either Iinite or indefinite. Intangible assets with an

indehnite useful life are assessed for impairment at each reporting date.

f) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any

uncollectible amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment

on a continuing basis. An estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

gf Provlslons

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or seryice potential will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation. Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is

recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial
performance net of any reimbursement.

hl Contlngent liabilltles
The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of
any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility

of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is

remote.

l7



Nde t^utat[tft AnnualR rts and Financial Slatements for the Ended June 30. 2023
Itotes to the Flnaacial Statements lContlnuedf
Sunmary of Slgnlficant Accountlng Policles lContlnued)

lf Nature and purpose of resenres

The Authority creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements

i.e. revaluation reserves and revenue reserves.

Jl Chaager in accounting policiee and estimates
The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively.
The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if
retrospective application is impractical.

kf Employee beneltts
Retlrement beneflt plaae

The Authority provides a contributory retirement benefit for its employees. This

defined contributory plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Authority pays fixed contributions of 75Yo while the employee contributes 7.SYo

on basic pay. The total amount is paid the fund account managed by Gen-Africa

Asset Managers ltd (Fund manager). The Authority have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets

to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement
benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

lf Forelgn curreacy transactlone

Transactions in foreigrr currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate

of exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors

denominated in foreign currency are reported at the statement of financia-l

position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange

differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of
creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded

during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which
they arise.

l8



rudr Annual Renorts and Financial Statemenls for the Year Ended June 30. 2021
Notea to the Flnancld Statements lContinuedf
Summary of Slgnlflcaat Accountlag Pollcies lContinued)

mf Related pertle8

The Authority regards a related party as a person or an Entit5r with the ability to
exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise signihcant influence over the
Authority, or vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related
parties and comprise the board directors, the Executive Director and managers

nf Cash and caeh equlvalente
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term
deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include
amounts at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

ol Comparative llguree
where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been
amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

pf Subsequent eve[tg
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a
significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023.

l9



Nda Annual ReDorts and Financial Statements r the Year Ended .lune 30. 2023
Notes to the Flaanclal Stetements lContinuedf
Summary of Slgniflcant Accountlng Pollcles (Contlnuedf

5. Slgnilicant Judgmeats and Sources of Estlmatloa Uncertalnty

The preparation of the Authority's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and

the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset

or liability allected in future periods.

Estimates and ascumptions.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrJring amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, zrre described below. The Entity based its assumptions and

estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements

were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising

beyond the control of the Authority. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Ugeful llves and residual value

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following

indicators to inform potentia-l future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by

the Entity.

b) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in

technolory and processes.

c) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.

e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

20



nda Annual Renorls and Financial Statements for the Year June i0. 2023
Notc: to tho Flnaacial Stetcmcnt (Conttaucd)

Suamar5z of Slgrrulcant Accoulthg Pollcler (Contiauedf
Provldona

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the

information available. Additiona-l disclosure of these estimates of provisions is
included in Note 27. Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate

of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and are

discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Dcprcclation Pollcy

Depreciation is calculated on straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to
write off the cost of the asset over expected useful lives.

The annual depreciation rates in use are: -

i. Computer Equipment & Accessories 33.3o/o

ii. Motor Vehicles 25o/o

iii. Communication and Office Equipment l2.S o/o

iv. Furniture and Fittings 12.5o/o

2l



ftfCA lr*m*rrrrr, Reoorts and Financiat statements the Year Ended June i0. 2023

Transfers from other government
entities 1,202,300,000 1,260,000,000

Totd 1,2O2,3OO,OOO 1,26O,(X)O,OOO

Note. to the Flnanclal Statemcnte (Conttauedf

6. Transfcn from Other Govcrnmcnt cntltler

b) Tranrferr fron Mlnletrler, Dcpattmcats arrd Agenclcr IUDAI)
The Authority receives budgetary support from the Government in the form of

recurrent grants through the State Department for Public Works and shown in
the schedule below;

Krhr Kche KShe KShr KBhr

State

Department

of Public

Work

1,202,300,000 1,260,000,000 1,260,000,000

Total 1,2O2,3OO,(XX) 1,26O,(X)O,(XX' 1,260,(XXr,(XX)

22



nda I Reoorts and Financial Statements for the Ended June 30. 2023
NotGs to the Einancld Statemcate lCoatlnuedf
7. Contractor Appllcation Feee

The Authority is mandated to register and regulate the conduct of all contractors

both foreign and local. The contractors are required to make an application to

the Authority in the prescribed form and pay Kshs. 5,O00.0O for loca-l contractors

and US dollar 500.O0 for a foreign contractor application fee. The application is

subjected to an evaluation ald rated based on the provided criteria to inform
the category and class of registration. The growth in revenue is attributed to the

performance of the industry as it continues to recover from the Covid- 19

pandemic.

8. Contractor Regirtratlon Fees

The Authority registers contractors in different classes and categories depending

on their qualifications and experiences. The categories of registration ranges

from NCA 1 being the highest to NCA 8 being the lowest with the registration
fees ranging from KShs 100,000.00 to KShs 5,000.00. The registration certificate
issued is valid for a period of 3 years and renewable every year. The growth in
revenue is attributed to the Performance of the industry as it continues to
recover from the Covid- 19 pandemic.

9. Cortractor Renesal Fecs

The NCA Act requires contractors to renew their practicing licences annually at
a fee ranging from KShs 2,500 for NCA 8 to Kshs 30,OO0 NCA 1 per class of
registration for loca.l contractors and US dollar 1,5OO for foreign contractors.

Late renewals attract three times the annual renewal fee per class. The growth

Contractors Application Fee 86,058,005 53,014,894

Totd 86,058,OO5 53,O14,894

Contractors Registration Fees 289,510,163 163,689,822

Total 289,51O,163 163,689,822
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![ote! to thc Flnanclal Statcments (Contlnucdl

in revenue is attributed to the Performance of the industry as it continues to

recover from the Covid- 19 pandemic and the growth in the contractors register.

lO. Accrcdltatlon of Conttruction Worken
The Authority is mandated to register all construction workers and site

supervisors. The skilled workers and site supervisors are required to make the

application in the prescribed form and make a paJrment of KShs. 1,000.00 and

KShs 2,O00.00 respectively. The Authority in the period under review waived

the accreditation fees to enhance with a view of enhancing the number of
accredited workers in the industry.

Contractors Renewal Fees 44t,912,880 4t6,640,O42

Totd 441,912,88O 416,640,O42

Registration of Workers 141,001 660,000

Totd 141,OO1 660,(XX)
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Ifoter to the Finaacld Statements lContiaucdf
11. Upgradc fecr
The upgrade fees relate to application and registration fees charged on

contractors applylng for a category upgrade on the different classes of works
with NCA 8 being the lowest category and NCA1 being the highest. The fees for
upgrade application is KShs 5,OO0/- and registrations fees ranging from KShs

5,OOO/- to Kshs 100,000/- depending on the category awarded. The growth in
revenue on this vote is attributable to the performance of the industry.

12. Confcrcnce aad Workrhope
The Authority carries out training and capacity building workshops and
seminars for the contractors and construction workers. The contractor,s pays

for the training while the Authority subsidizes the training cost using other
internally generated revenues. Pursuant to section 5(2)(i) of the National
Authority Act No 41 of 2Oll, The Authorig is mandated to provide, promote,

review, and co-ordinate training programs organized by public and private

accredited training centers. The Authority accredited training institutions in the
period under review at prescribed rates to carrJr out training of contractors. The

decline in revenue is attributed to the policy change where the Authority charges

administrative fees and the training cost is borne by the accredited institution.
This has resulted in bottom line savings on capacit5r building programmes.

nanct

Upgrade fees 82,580,453 54,189,532

Total 82,58O,453 54,189,532

Conferences & Worksh ops 41,496,200 49,745,350

Total 41,496,2OO 49,745,350
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Notc! to the Flnenclal Statcmeats (Contlnuedf

13. Interest Income

This income stream relates to interest earned on cash balances on the

Authority's current bank accounts. The banks remit the pa5rment of interest on

credit balances at prevailing market interest rates. The variance as compared to

the prior year relates to value of credit balances held across the period under
revlew.

14. Other lacomc

The incomes earned relates sponsorship fees for International Constnrction

Research Conference and Exhibition. The Authority invited sponsors to facilitate

the event which culminated to award of the best performing contractor and

construction workers in the industry. This was aimed at promoting excellence

in the industry through effective coordination and regulation of the industry.

Credit Interest 8,886,994 9,527,964

8,886,994 9,527,964

Tender 225,770
Sponsorship 2,100,oo0 r,250,000

Totd 2,1OO,OOO 1,475,770
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15. Usc of Goods aad Scrvicer

The expenditure constitutes administrative and operational costs in daily

running of the Authority in discharge of its mandate as envisaged in the

enabling Act of parliament.

RGrtatcd

The decline in expendirure as compared to the previous year relates to budget

rationalisation and austeriQr measures. However, some votes recorded growth in
expenditure i.e. securiry and cleaning, utilities, fuel and lubricants,
subscriptions & licenses and communication. The increase on utilities, fuel and
lubricants relates to the $owth in market prices and the depreciating shillings.
Whereas the growth in cleaning and security, subscriptions and licenses and
communication costs relate to actual tendered amounts on the nrnning
contracts as per the market prices evaluated competitively.

Security and cleaning 24,067,806 21,865,O79
Utilities Supplies & Services 5,695,582 4,655,524
Rent 63,954,075 66,869,408
StalI Welfare & Hospitality 35,801,722 35,102,669
StaJI Training and Capacity Building 68,782,O91 72,672,989
Research, Contractors Training and Cap.
Building 168,635,557 239,454,233
Oflice & Gen. Supply & Services 97,536,t72 t14,120,964
Fuel and Lubricants 31,728,442 24,138,985
Professiona-l and consultancy Fees 19,225,481 13,632,580
Subscriptions and Licenses 33,420,628 24,962,202
Provision for Bad Debts r00,000,000 80,000,000
Insurance 83, r06,660 90,a40,t42
Advertising 42,778,407 59,3s4,359
Travelling and Accommodation 140,308.098 138,332,879
Communication 33,O41,223 20,9t9,t28
Bank Charges 2,877,279 3,133,251
Total 950,959,223 1,O1O,O54,392
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16. Enploycc corto

Employee costs includes salaries and wages, other personnel emoluments,

employer pension contributions, training and capacity building and provision

for gratuity for the period under review. The increase in personnel emoluments

relates growth in establishment, the annua-l salary increments and secondment

of National Police Oflicers to enhance the Authority's enforcement capacity. The

reduction in gratuity and training and capacity building was occasioned by exit

of stall on contract within the year and budget rationalisation respectively.

Rectetcd

Salaries & Wages 802,924,637 745,707,O90
Employer Pensions 61,s02,600 56.781.885
Provision for Gratui ty (Note 27) 25,527,973 29,338,276

889,955,210 a3L,A27,2St
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17. Board expentcr
The board expenses represent the expenditure incurred for the board activities.

This is in line with the board's calendar of activities for the financial year in
execution of their mandate in line with the NCA Act, Mwongozo guidelines

amongst other regulations. The growth in expenditure relates board enquiries

and capacit5r building programmes in the period under review.

Restatcd

18. Rcpalra and Maintcnance

The expenditure relates to expenses in maintenance of the Authority's assets to

ensure optimal operations in service delivery. The decline in expenditure is

attributed to effrciencies in handling of the Authority's assets.

Chairman Honoraria L,O27,300 1,044,000
Sitting Allowances 16,422,400 17,203,200
Training Expenses 10,624.903 2,955,766
Travel and Accommodation 37,523,O19 14,681,O27
Other expenses 600,220 651,128

66,197,842 36,535,121

Motor vehicles 14,025,801 20,500,888
OIIice furniture & equipment 229,O81 449,659
Buildings-non-residential 19,201,414 2,24s,908
Computers & ICT ipment 3,330,270 16,004,O85

Total 36,786,565 39,6(,0,54O
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19. Depreclatloa
The policy of the Authority is to charge depreciation on a straight-line basis over

the life span of the assets. The growth in depreciation expense in the period is
attributed to revalued motor vehicle class of assets and the depreciation charge

thereon.

20. Taxcs

The tax expense incurred by the Authority relates to the withholding tax on

credit interest and tax expense on bank charges.

Motor Vehicle 39,76a,234 27,282,153
ngsFbrniture and Fitti 26,202,617 26,547,tt7

Computers and ICT Equipment 17,701,139 7,943,751
Offrce Equipment r,789,552 1,852,745
Totd 85,461,542 63.625,767
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21. Galn/Loss on forelgn exchange transactlons
The gain on foreign exchange transaction relates to revaluation gains on USD

fixed deposit held and forex exchange in USD transactions.

22. Receivablee from Non- Erchange Traagactlons

laf Recelvables from Non- Erchange Traasactions

(l) Rccclvables
Deposits 205,000 205,000
Debtors 1,658.529.434 t,659,273,434
kss: Impairment allowance (1,068,9O2,185) (968,902.18s1
Salar5r Advance 2,506,515 r,788,603
Outstanding Imprests 3,888,580 6,615,089
Prepajments 74,769,289 66,884,838
Sundry Debtors 3,584,700 3,584,700

674,581,333 769,449,48,o
lltl Accnred lacomc
Interest Income
Ecitizen payments 410,971 t1,261,492
Accnled Mortgage recoveries 5,1o4,245 6,301,618
Grants receivable 92,050,000

g?,5,65'216 17,563,110

llil Staff Schcmee
Mortgages 358,056,944 323,943,455
Car l,oan 15,680,048 22,706,7L6

373,736,99t 346,650,171

Total recelvables from non- exchange
traasactlons 1,145,883,541 1,133,662,761
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lbl Agetng aaalysle for Rccelvabler from Non- erchange traaeactlonr

lc) Reconcll{ation for Impalrmcnt Allowarrce on Recelvablce from Non-

Exchange Transactions

The policy of the Authority is to make a specifrc provision for bad and doubtful
debts at the rate of 97o of the trade receivables. Review of sample of the files for

the levy fees revealed gaps that may alTect the recoverability of the debts hence

the management made additional provision for bad and doubtful debts of Kshs.

1OO Million for the period under review.

23. Cash and Carh Equlvalenta

Reetatcd

The reduction in cash and cash equivalents for the period under is attributable
to uptake and disbursements out of the stalf schemes and surplus remittances
in the year under review.

lrss than I year 552,466,592 48o/o 439,50 I ,8 l2 38.80/.

Between 1-2 years Oo/" 3,584,700 O.3o/o

Over 3 years 593,4t6,949 52% 690,576,249 60.9o/"

Totd 1,145,883,S1 t,L39,662,76L

At the beginning of the year 968,902,185 888,902,185
Additional provisions during the year r00,ooo,oo0 80,000,oo0
Recovered during the year
Written off during the year
At the end of the year I,068,9O2,185 968,9O2,185

Current Account 63,868,785 97.337,734
On-Call deposits 9,356,000 7,356,000
StaJI Car loan/ Mortgage 128,293,368 162.184,614
Cash in hand 72,147 t22,065

Total 2()1,590,300 267,OOO,4L4
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Dctdled AnalyrL of the Carh aad Carh Equlvalente

Rcrteted

af Current accouat
Kenya Commercial bank 1136368019 11,624,383 17,659,861
NCBA Bank Kenva 70r2550017 1,412,989 7,707,257
NCBA Bank Kenva 70125500s9 1,093,686 7,102.342
NCBA Bank Kenva 70r2s50022 3,713,532 39,568,660
Co-operative Bank of Kenya r 141163043900 7,335,966 25,299,614
Co-operative Bank of Kenya 1141164160000 38,688,229
Sub- total 63,868,78s 97,337.734

On -call deposits
Kenya Commercial bank 9,356,000 7,356,000
Sub- total 9.356.000 7,356,O(x)
bl StaIf car loan/ mortgage
Kenya Commercial bank 1178700763 76,700,498 105,709,200
Consolidated Bank 10011202000004 51,592,870 56,475,4L4
Sub- totd r24,293368 162,184,614
e) Others(specifu)
Cash in hand 72,t47 122,065

72,147 t22,065,
Grand total 201,s90,300 267,OOO,4L4
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24. Propert5r, Pl,aat and Equlpment

AsAtO1.O7.2O21 270,3t1,670 220,342,519 177,613,783 22,779.893 33,179,660 724,227,525
Adiu.sfiEnt
Additior* 26,551,400 6,283,730 13,155,700 1,288,940 39,860,257 87,140,O27
Dispos,?ls (1,277,2041 (r,446,9641 (93, r r0l (2,8r7,27e1
As AtSOthJune2022 296.463,O70 225,349,O45 149'322,5t9 23,,975,723, 73,O39.917 8O8,55O,274
Adiustment (9,550,000) (9,sso,000)
Reualuatian 88,77t,229 88,771,229
Additions 13,108,OOO 4,031,200 31,929,750 13,843,600 62,912,550
Dsposals
As AtSOthJune2O2S

As At O1.O7.2O21 215,576,260

398 742 299

144,O73,220

229 380 245

r71.382.6r0

22r 25.2 269

16,193.789

23 975 723 77 333 517

547,225,a78

950 684 o53

Periad Charue 27,282,153 26,547,117 7,943,751 r,852,745 63,625,767
Wrire off
Disposal (r,277,2041 (1,446,9641 (93,I l0) Q,8r7,2781
As AtSothJune2022 242,8'54.4t3 169,343,134 177,479,397 t7,953,423
Period Charqe 39,764,234 26,202,617 17,701,139 1,749,552 45,46t,542
Write off
Disposal
As At 3(nhJunc 2023

As AtSOthJune2O2S 116.115.652

242 626 47

4,232'744

19 742 975,

77.33,3,51733,834,494

195 s45 7St

25,67t,733

195 580 536

257,188,14

693 5 9()9

As At s(nhJutre 2022 #,(x)4,657 56,(xr5.911 lt.#3,t22 6,q22.3(n 75,O39,9t7 2qr,515.907
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llork ln Progreu (WIPf

Work in progress relates to capital expenditure and costs associated to the

development of the Centre for Constnrction Industqr Development (CCID)

24 (bf Propcrty, Plant and Equipmcnt at Coet

If the assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts would be as

follows:

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully
depreciated:

During the prior year the following assets were disposed as per the public

Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2015;

Capital Work in
Progress 77,333,517 77,333,517

Motor Vehicles,
Including
Motorcycles

398,742,299 282,626,647 116,115,652

Computers And
Related
Equipment

221,252,269 195,580,536 25,671,733

OIIice
Equipment 23,975,723 19,742,975 4,232,748

Furniture, And
Fittings 229,380,245 195,545,751 33,834,494

Total 950,684,O53 693,495,909 257,teB,144

OIfice Equipment 9,617,337 9,617,337
Computer Equipment & Access 176,166,a20 t76,166,a20
Furniture & Fittings 164,175,820 164,t75,a20
Total 849,959,977 349,959,977

Office Equipment 93,1 10 93,110
Computer Equipment & Access I,446,964 t,446,964
Furniture & Fittings 1,277,204 1,277,204
Totd 2,817,278 2,917,278
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25. Intangiblc Aasets

26. Trade end Other Payablca

As At O1.O7.2O21 t74,205,691 t74,205,691
Adju.stm.ent (4,700,ooo)
Additians
As At 30.06.2022

As At O1.07.2022 691,2r0

169 505 691 174

69t,210

o5 691

Period Charqe
Impairment 4,700,000
As At 3o,06.2023

As At 3o.06.2o23 168,814,481

691 2to

168.814.481

5 391 2ro

Accounts Pavables 55,718,726 18 I .380.333
Provisions and Accruals- Note
27 243,801,468 235,714,904

Prepaid Lew 24,251.869 24,25r,869
Sundry Creditors 11,859,617 22,654,466
Receipts in Advance 3,045,509
Total trade and other payabler 335,631,679 467,051,481

Agetng analyrlr: lTradc and
other payablcsf 2022l2O2S

o/o of
the

Totd
2O2rl2022

o/o ol
thc

Total

Under one year 3 1 1,379,81 1 92.8o/" 439,754,103 94o/"
t-2 years O.Oo/o 3,045.509 lo/o
2-3 years 24,25r,469 7 .2o/o 24,251,869 SYo

Totd lttc to abovc totall 33s.631,679 467.051.481I I
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27. Current Provlelons

The provisions made during the year for operating expenses are as per the

schedule below;

The Authority has various members of stalr on contract basis, this includes the
Executive Director, General Managers - Research, Business Development and
Capacity Building, the General Manager Corporate services and the General

Manager Registration and Compliance and 104 staff at huduma centres. The

employees on contract are entitled to gratuity paJment at the rate of 3lyo of the
basic pay on successful completion of their terms. The Authority made provisions

for operating expenses in the period under review to cater for contingent liabilities
for goods and services provided and other running contracts that the Authority
has a liability to pay in line with the accrual basis of accounting. The board
approved the opening of a gratuity account to safeguard the funds provided for
gratuity

2I3. Surplus Remlsrion
In accordance with section 219 l2l of the public Financial Management Act
regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per

centum of its surplus funds reported in the audited financial statements after the
end of each financial year. In line with this legal requirement the Entity remitted
Kshs 98,634,023 being surplus in arrears and the reported surplus to be remitted
as per the financial statements is KShs. 1 15,625,805

The Surplus Remission has been computed as follows:

39,899,406 1,400.000 194,4r 5,498 235,7 t4,904
Provision for the year 25,527,973 700,000 50,32t,929 76,549,902
Adiustments
Pelnocnte/Tranrfcrr
PaJrments during the
year (r0,908,139) (2,1O0,000) (55.455,200) (68,463,339)

54,519,241 1a9,2a2,227 243,801,468
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Surplus for the period 128,473,117 35,859,366
kss: Allowable deductions by
NT

907o Computation
in Statement of
Performance)

(Included
Financial l15,625,805 32,273,430

Notc! to the Flnaaclal Statemente (Conttnuedf

Surplur Reml*lon Payable

The Authority has complied with The PFM Act Section 219 (21 in remitting the

surplus Eurears which relates to the long outstanding debtors on construction levy

that was set aside with effect from 1"t January 2017.

Payable at the beginning ofthe year 664,647,930 1,2t3,275,2L7
Paid during the year (98.634.023) (s44,627,2871
Payablc at cnd of thc ycar 570,O13,907 66a.67.930
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29. Cash Gencrated from Operatloaa

30. Flaencial Rlck Managemeat
The Entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and
liquidity risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Entity's overall risk
management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business
environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on
its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The Entig does not hedge aly
risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers
with an established credit history. The Entity's financial risk management
objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Crcdlt rtsk
The Entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will
be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments. Management assesses the credit quality

Surplur for thc ycar bcfore tar 128,473,1t7 3s,859,366
AdJurtcd for:
Depreciation 45,46r,542 63,625,767
Non-cash grants received
Contributed assets
Impairment 4,700,000
Gains and losses on disposal of assets
Contribution to provisions
Contribution to impairment allowance
Working capltal adJustmeate
Increase in inventory
Increase in receivables (12,22O,780) 42,367,488
Increase in deferred income
Increase in payables (r31,419,801) 142,332,704
Increase in pa1rments received in advance
Nct cerh flow from opcratiag activitlee 70,294,O78 288,885,324
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of each customer, taking into account its financia-l position, past experience and

other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external

assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented

in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,

estimated by the Entity's management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.

Flnanclal Rlrt Meaagomcnt

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements

representing the Entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account

of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

Ar at 3O &ac 2O23
Receivables from non-
exchange transactions r , 145,883,541 556,256,292 389,627,249

Bank balances 201,590,300 201,590.300
Total L,947,473,84t 757,a#.692 sa9,627.249
Ar at 3O J$a 2I)22
Receivables from non-
exchange transactions 7,t33,662,761 443,29r,512 690,37r,249

Balk balances 267,OOO,4r4 267,OOO,4t4
Totd 1,4q),653.175 7to.29L,926 69(),37L,249

I
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Flnanclel RlrL Meaegcmcat

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they

continue trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minima-l and

the allowance for uncollectible amounts that the Entity has recognised in the

financial statements is considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable

amounts. The Entity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due

from debtors. The board of directors sets the Entity's credit policies and objectives

and lays down parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk
management are operated.

iD Hqufdity rlrtr maangcmcnt

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Entity,s
directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of the Entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Entity manages liquidity risk through continuous
monitoring of forecasts and actua-l cash flows. The table below represents cash
flows payable by the Entity under non-derivative financial tiabilities by their
remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due w.ithin 12

months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Ar rt 3() Juac 2O23
Accounts Payables 30,243,413 25,475,3t3 55,7 7a,726
Provisions and
Accruals 76,549,902 167,251,56s 243,801,468
Prepaid lew 24,251,869 24,25t,A69
Sundry Creditors 11,859,617 11,859.617
Receipts in Advance (s50,100) 550,100
Totel 118,652.932 t92,t76,7?A 24,aO1,969 335,631,679
A. st 30 Ju8.c 2022
Accounts Pavables 181,380,333 181,380,333
Provisions and
Accruals t t I ,644,7A6 t24,O70,t7A 235,7 t 4,904
Prepaid kw 24,257,869 24,257,a69
Sundry Creditors 22,658,866 22,658,866
Receipts in Advance 3,045,509 3,045,509
Totd s1s,683,985 L27,LLd,627 24.231.'369 467,051.481
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Flnanclal Rlsk Maaagernent

lvl Capttd Rllk Managemcnt

The objective of the Entity's capital risk management is to saieguard the Entity,s

ability to continue as a going concern. The Entity capital structure comprises of
the following funds:

31. Rclatcd Party Dloclosures

Ilature of relatcd oartv rclatlonshlDg
Entities and other parties related to the Authorit5r include those parties who have

ability to exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and

financial decisions. Related parties include management personnel, their
associates and close family members.

Govcrnmcnt of Kenva

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Authority, holding

1OO% of the Authority's equity interest.

Othcr rclated oattler lnclude:

i)

ii)

iii)

irr)

v)

vi)

vii)

The Parent Ministry.

Count5r Governments

Other SCs arld SAGAs

Donors

Key management.

Board of directors.

Revaluation Reserve 44,77 r,229
Retained Earnings 1,329,O73,557 1,282,942,O82
Development Fund 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total Fundc 1,349,O73,557 1,3o2,942.O82
Total Borrowings
kss: Cash And Bank Balances 201,590,300 267,OOO,414
Net Debt/(Excess Cash And Cash
Equivalents) (2O1,s90,3O0) (267,OOO,4141

Gcarlng Oo/o Oo/"
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Traneactloar slth rclatcd pertlcr
al Salor to related particg

Government Agencies t,o44,377,778 1,o44,377,778
County Government 26,257,541 26,257,541
Totd I,O7O,635,319 1,070,635,319
B) purcharcr from rclated Dartics
Purchases of electricity from KPLC 5,518,985 4,295,279
Purchase of water from govt service
providers 176,596 169,786

Rent expenses paid to govt agencies 4,788,720 4,788,720
Total 10,484,3(}2 9,25'3,784

bf Grants /traaefen from the
govcrnment
Grants from national govt 1,202,300,000 r,260,000,o00
Grants from county government
Donations in kind
Total 1,202,3(x).qX) 1,260,(X)O,OOO

cf Erpcnse! lncurcd on behalf
of rclatcd party
Payments of salaries and wages for >oo<

employees
PaJrments for goods and services for
x)o<
Totd

df Key managcmcnt
compenration
Directors' emoluments 66,277,5t7 36,535. r21
Compensation to key management 93,356,496 96,919,000
Totel 159,634.013 133,454,121
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32. Capital Conmltnent!

Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial
year and are disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may
be those that have been authorised by the board but at the end of the year had
not been contracted or those already contracted for and ongoing.

33. Prlor Year Aqrultncnts
Prior period adjustments are recognitions of omissions and misstatements in the

entity's financial statements for more thal one prior period arising from under
recognition of revenues, restatement of provisions and fund balances. It is the
opinion of the management that the adjustments of Kshs 16,292,381 are

immaterial and does not significantly alfect decision making.

34. Eventt aftcr the Rcportlng Pcrlod
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting
period.

35. Ultlmatc and Holdlng Eatlty
The Authority is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency

under the Ministry of Lands, Pubtc Works Housing and Urban Development. Its
ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

36. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the
nearest Kshs.

Authorised and contracted for 11,930,OO0 9,s50,000
Total 11,93O,OOO 9,550,(XX)
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2O. Appcndiccr

Appendirr 1: Implemeatation Status of Auditor-General's Recommendatlons

The following is the summaqr of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided
to the auditor

I

Cash and cash
equivalents
relating to staff
car and
mortgage
reconciled
balances of ksh
102,O99.O92

The variances in cash book balance and
the bank certificate of balance was
occasioned by difference in reporting
frameworks between the figures provided
by the bank and the actual workings in
our books. The variances have since been
reconciled with the cashbook balances of
the stalf car and mortgage balances with
that of the bank.

Resolved

2

Preparation of
schemes
consolidated
financial reports

To meet with the fund managers to agree
on the deadline to prepare the financial
reports as per the requirements of PFM
Act 2012.

Not resolved

30.06.24

3

Unsupported
expenditure on
use of goods and
services whereby
the supporting

The lack of details on payee and activity
description was occasioned by system
inadequacies to generate the report as
required. The Authority maintains the
physical vouchers and the details are

Resolved
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schedules did
not have the
details of the
payees and
activities
undertalen.

available for review. The management
reconfigured the ERP system to generate
reports outlining the details of the payees
and narrations of the undertaken
activities to meet the audit requirements.

4

Long
outstanding
receivables of
Kshs.
1,659,279,934
with respect to
construction levy

The management put in place recovery
measures for the outstanding debts.
However, the recoverability of the debts
remains doubtful after the suspension of
the levy with effect from l st January 2O 1 7
despite the recovery mechanisms
employed. TOVo of lhe debt is owed by
government agencies. The management
has engaged the National Treasury with
the view of waiving the non-recoverable
amounts and is currently working on a
Cabinet Memo for consideration.

Unresolved

31.r2.23

5

Prepayments to
Kor.z.a
Technopolis
Development
Authority for
acquisition of
land for
development of
Centre for
Construction
Industry
Development
(ccrD)

The pa5rment was made for purchase of
6.4 acres of land and the amount payable
was subsequently waived as it is
government land. The Authority treated
the amount as a prepayment in the books
of accounts ald is engaging KoTDA on the
utilization/refund of the amount.

Unresolved

31.12.23
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6

Failure to
revalue fully
depreciated
assets

The assets were fully disclosed by the
management as per the provisions of
IPSAS 17. One class ofasset was revalued
during the year i.e. motor Vehicle and the
management will carry reva.luation for
another class in the current ar.

Resolved

7

Trade payeblcr;
Aging analysis
for trade and
other payables
and provisions.

Clarity on who
the money is
owed to. Else,
the money
should have
been
surrendered to
Unclaimed
Financial Assets
Authority (UFAA)
(Kshs.
24,2#,8691

The management has provided relevant
schedules on the aging analysis for the
trade payables through systems generated
reports in prescribed formats.

The management is still in the process of
reconciling the funds with the debts
records available.

Unresolved.

Resolved

31.12.23

8

Failure to comply
qrith 30%
affirmative action
for board
members.

The board is not properly constituted in
compliance with the 30% gender rule. The
management made relevant follow-ups
with the appointing authority to ensure
conformity to this allirmative action.

Unresolved

30.06.24
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9

Delay in the
implementation
of the CCID
project

The management has carried out
feasibility studies, Geo-technica.l surveys,
developed desigrrs and the Building
Implementation system for the
implementation of the CCID project.
However, the project implementation will
take effect immediately now that the
approvals have been granted by the
National Treasury.

Resolved

l0

Non preparation
of separate
Financial
Statement for
Car Loan and
Mortgage Loans

The PFM Act Regulations 2015 require
government entities to prepare separate
financial statements for the fund
accounts. However, there is an ambiguity
on the definition of a fund account and a
scheme.

Unresolved

30.06.24

ll

Non- compliance
on the one third
basic pay rule in
pa5rment of stalf
salaries

The Authority noted on the few affected
staIf on compliance level to the rule and
rectified the anomaly.

Resolved

Eng. Maurice Alech, MBS

Executive Dlrector

o.*: 1oJ o/Uu
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Appeadir II: ProJectr laplemented by l{atioaal Constructlon Authortty

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners and/ or the Government.

Centre for Construction

Industry Development

(ccrD)

N/A 5 Years No Yes
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Stetut of ProJccta completion

I Centre for Constmction

Industr5r Development

3,200,000,oo0 65,403,517 2o/o 65,403,517 AIA
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Appendir IV: Traaeferr from Other Government Entltlca

12.o9.22 Recurrent 108,000,ooo 108,000,000 108,000,ooo
29.O9.22 Recurrent 109,000,000 t09,ooo,000 109,000,000
30.o9.22 Recurrent l08,ooo,000 l08,000.ooo 108,OO0,000
t4.11.22 Recurrent 109,000,o00 109,000,000 109,000,o00
02.12.22 Recurrent 108,000,000 108,OO0,000 108,000,000
29.r2.22 Recurrent 108,000,000 108,OOO,000 108,000,000
02.o3.23 Recurrent 92,0s0,000 92,050,000 92,050,OO0
06.04.23 Recurrent 92,050,000 92,050,000 92,050,000
06.06.23 Recurrent 92,050,000 92,050,OO0 92,050,000
08.o6.23 Recurrent 92,O50,OO0 92,O50,000 92,O50,000
o3.o7.23 Recurrent 92,050,O00 92,050,000 92,0s0,000

State department
for Public Works

1,202,300,000 1,202,300,000 1,202,300,OOO
Total 1,202.3(x),(x)O 1,2O2,3OO,(XX) 1,2O2,3OO,(XX'

IIIIIIIIIITIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
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Appoadlr V- Irtcr-Elrtlty Coaf,rmetlon Lettcr

ru<b^a,
N.A-rtoNA.L CONS-rnUciT|ON

A.IJ'THOR.I'TY

KCE Towcr.
Kcrtya Ftoad
Ut,pcrHill
wq ^,.rrca.Ao.kc

P-O.Bor( 2l 0.16 - OOIOO
Na,lrobl, I(€ilya

DL. +254 7O9 126/ L72/ 173
lrr fo@ncxr.ao. kc

The National Construction Authority wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed as at 30s June 2023 as indicated in the
table below.

a

Amounts Disbursed by State Department for Public
Works (KShs) as at 30th June 2023

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent (A) Development
(B)

Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total
(D)=(A+B+c)

Amount
Received by
NCA

(KShs) as at
30e June

2023
(E)

Differences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

FT22255LP2rJ L2l09/2022 r08.000,000 1o8,000.000 r08,000,000

FT22272JIXLP 291O9/2022 109,OOO,OOO 109,000,000 109,000,000

FT22273C5SBM 30/0912022 108.OOO.O00 108.000.000 108,000,000

FT223l8RlWW4 14/ tt 12022 109.000.000 109,000.000 r09,000,000
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F-T22336K9CTG 02112/2022 108,000,000 108,000.000 108,OO0,O00

FT22363QB3T2 29 /12/2022 108,000,000 108,OOO,000 r08,000,000

FT23O34NMW6 03/02/2023 92,050,000 92,0s0,oo0 92,050,OOO

FT23096N2JGQ 06/o4/2023 92,050,000 92,O50,000 92,O50,000

FT23096731YM 06/04 /2023 92,O50,000 92,0so,000 92,050,000

FT23757FVZ3W 06l06/2023 92,050,000 92,050,000 92,050,000

FT23I594NsPV o8/06/2023 92,050,000 92,050,000 92,050,OOO

F'T22255LP21J 30/06/2023 92,O50,000 92,050,OO0
92,0s0,000

Total -l-202'30a*a00 t202ia0^000 lJt025o-a00 92-050-000
I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated.
Head of Accounteats departmeDt of benellclary Entit5r:

Itame .(.14*.r Sn aG.... Kt. ?-1.*t.t ...... Sf$r Date.d.f?. .!.l,ozz
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Appcndk VI: Rcportlag of Clinatc Relcvant Erpendlturce

Tree

Planting

Increasing

forest cover to

10% bY 30*'

June 2023

Increasing

forest cover

to l0%by
3oth June

2023

AIA Kenya Forest

Service

t
tI
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